
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 25, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Meeting 

June 25, 2019, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 19-051: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Three Year
Agreement to Purchase Insurance Coverage with the City’s Insurance Broker RISQ Consulting
with a 5% Discount for Each Year .......................................................................... Page 3 

b. Action Memorandum No. 19-052: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an
Assignment and Consent to Assignment of Lease Agreement with CIG, LLC (Assignor) and PAAQ
Hangar Association (Assignee) for PMA Lease No. 19-001 on Lease Lot 12, Block 3, Palmer
Municipal Airport for the Purpose of Transferring the Lease to a Newly Formed T Hangar
Association .......................................................................................................... Page 31 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. May 28, 2019, Special Meeting .............................................................................. Page 103 
b. May 28, 2019, Regular Meeting ............................................................................. Page 105 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from Julie Berberich on the Palmer Spring Classic 2019 Bike Event

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. City Clerk’s Report
3. Mayor’s Report .......................................................................................................... Page 109 
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Ordinance No. 19-011: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.04.041 and 2.05.030

Establishing Council Member and Mayor Term Limits .................................................... Page 113 
2. Ordinance No. 19-012: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 1.08.020(A) Penalty Surcharge

and Amending the 2019 City of Palmer Fine Schedule to Reflect the New Surcharge ....... Page 117 

I. NEW BUSINESS
1. Action Memorandum No. 19-053: Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City

Council’s Statement of Non-Objection to Liquor License No. 649 for Klondike Mike’s Saloon, Located
at 820 S. Colony Way ................................................................................................. Page 121 

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Pete LaFrance 
Council Member Julie Berberich 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Linda Combs 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member David Fuller 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: June 25, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

2. Action Memorandum No. 19-054: Accepting Council Member Pete LaFrance’s Resignation,
Declaring the Seat Vacant Effective June 26, and Directing the City Clerk to Begin the Appointment
Process to Fill the Vacancy Until a Successor is Seated After the October 1, 2019, Regular Election
 ................................................................................................................................ Page 137 

3. Election of Alternate Deputy Mayor ............................................................................. Page 143 

J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

M. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

July 9 Regular 7 pm 

July 23 Regular 7 pm 

Aug 13 Regular 7 pm 

Aug 27 Special 6 pm Audit Presentation 

Aug 27 Regular 7 pm 

Sept 10 Regular 7 pm 

Sept 24 Regular 7 pm 

Oct 7 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 8 Regular 7 pm 

Oct 22 Special 6 pm Budget (1st Public Hearing) 

Oct 22 Regular 7 pm 

Oct 29 Special 6 pm Budget 

Nov 5 Special 6 pm Budget 

Nov 12 Special 6 pm Budget 

Nov 12 Regular 7 pm 

Nov 26 Special 6 pm Budget 

Nov 26 Regular 7 pm 

Dec 10 Regular 7 pm Budget Adoption (Public Hearing) 

Dec 24 Regular 7 pm 

Jan 14, ‘20 Regular 7 pm 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-051 Page 1 of 2 
 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-051 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Three Year Agreement to Purchase Insurance 
Coverage with the City’s Insurance Broker RISQ Consulting with a 5% Discount for Each Year 
 
Agenda of: June 25, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
√  Finance  

 06/12/2019 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 414,508.92 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 414,508.92 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): Various lines 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-051 Page 2 of 2 
 

Attachment(s):  
 RISQ Consulting’s APEI proposal 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The City’s Insurance Broker, RISQ Consulting (formerly Alaska USA Brokers), presented the attached 
proposal to the administration for the renewal of the City’s insurance policies for the year beginning July 
1, 2019. 
 
The Council approved the insurance policy for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. If the City enters into 
a three-year agreement with APEI, the City will receive a 5% discount each year. In the 2019/2020 
insurance policy, the premium would be reduced by $21,024.87. The policy would be reduced from 
$435,533.51 to $414,508.92. The City would also receive a 5% longevity credit for the next two years. 
The exact amount is not available at this time as it is based on the annual quote. 
 
The City has had insurance coverage with excellent service through APEI since 2008. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-051 Authorize the City Manager to Enter into a Three Year 
Agreement to Purchase Insurance Coverage with the City’s Insurance Broker, RISQ Consulting, with a 5% 
Discount for Each Year 



                          

 
 CITY OF PALMER  

 

 
 

       Commercial Insurance Proposal 
 
 
 

Presented By 
 
 

 
 

 
Jan Martinson, CMIP 

Senior Account Executive/Partner 
 

Spring Ortega, CISR 
Senior Account Manager 

 
July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=city+of+palmer+ak&view=detailv2&&id=D2CC30B8535ADD4C61484CFAB187DF9C9ED2552B&selectedIndex=10&ccid=5bxXyPyc&simid=608004118433106901&thid=OIP.Me5bc57c8fc9c28f87ed8bdf744bee2edo0


 City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
 

 
YOUR RISQ CONSULTING SERVICE TEAM 
 
SENIOR ACCOUNT EXECUTIVE/PARTNER 
 
Jan Martinson, CMIP 
 
(907) 365-5108 – Direct Line 
jmartinson@risqconsulting.com 
 
Jan aggressively represents your firm in the insurance marketplace and intends to 
thoroughly acquaint you with coverage proposals and placements. She is responsible to 
make sure your account is handled to your satisfaction.   
 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Spring Ortega, CISR  
Senior Account Manager 
 
(907) 365-5115 – Direct Line 
sortega@risqconsulting.com 
 
Spring is qualified to help you with service needs, questions, changes in coverage, or 
problems you may have with your policies. Her goal is your satisfaction. 
 
CLAIMS 
 
Jan or Spring can be called when you have an insurance claim. We can help you with 
every step of the claim process, from the initial report to staying in contact with the 
insurance company to make sure your claim is handled in a manner that meets our high 
standards. 
 
 
ACCOUNTING 
 
Spring Ortega, CISR  
Senior Account Manager 
 
(907) 365-5115 – Direct Line 
sortega@risqconsulting.com 
 
 

mailto:jmartinson@risqconsulting.com
mailto:sortega@risqconsulting.com
mailto:sortega@risqconsulting.com


 City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
 

CLIENT INFORMATION SHEET 
 

Account Name: City of Palmer 
 
Mailing Address: 231 W. Evergreen Avenue 
 Palmer, AK 99645    
 
Phone Number: (907) 745-3271    
 
Fax Number: (907) 745-0930    
 
Contacts: Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
 nwallace@palmerak.org 
 Direct: (907) 761-1304 
  
    Alice Williams, HR/Risk Manager 
 awilliams@palmerak.org 

Direct: (907) 761-1302 
 

Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent     
fkelly@palmerak.org 
Direct: (907) 761-1334 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
RISQ Consulting provides this Insurance Proposal as a working document for easy 
reference concerning insurance coverage, not as a legal contract. This Insurance 
Proposal is provided to facilitate your understanding of your insurance program. Please 
refer to the actual policies for specific terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions that 
will govern in the event of a loss. 
 
In evaluating your exposures to loss, we have been dependent upon information 
provided by you. If there are other areas that need to be evaluated prior to binding 
coverage, please bring these areas to our attention. Should any of your exposures 
change after coverage is bound, such as your beginning new operations, hiring 
employees in new states, buying additional property, etc., please let us know so proper 
coverage can be discussed. 
 

mailto:nwallace@palmerak.org
mailto:awilliams@palmerak.org
mailto:fkelly@palmerak.org


 City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
 

 
NAMED INSUREDS 
 
City of Palmer  



 City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
 

 
INDEX 

 
Premium Summary  ......................................... ………………………………………………………… 1 

Premium Credits ……………………………………………………………. .......................................... 2  

Premium Summary Last 4 Years ................................................................................... 3 

Property ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Inland Marine – Mobile Equipment .............................................................................. 9 

Inland Marine – Radios and Laptops ............................................................................ 10 

Crime  ............................................................................................................................ 11 

General Liability  ........................................................................................................... 12 

Automobile ................................................................................................................... 13 

Workers’ Compensation  .............................................................................................. 17 

Airport Owners & Operators Liability ........................................................................... 19 

Optional Coverage’s ...................................................................................................... 20 

Privacy Policy  ................................................................................................................ 21 

 

 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 1 

 

PREMIUM SUMMARY 

  *Longevity Credit: Reflects the member’s loss experience and time with APEI/Pool - Applied at Renewal 
 
 (1) Property – Increase due to increases in excess costs and increase in property values. 2018 was a difficult year 
for worldwide property reinsurance market, with significant number of catastrophes. This combined with a few 
large Alaska claims in recent years, has resulted in an overall property rate increase.  
 
(2) GL – Increase due to APEI experiencing several significant liability claims in recent years, affecting both 
school districts and municipal members. These liability claims have penetrated the excess layer, causing concern 
among the excess carriers for future large claims.  

 
(3) Auto – Increase due to adding 3 2018 Ford Pickups 

 
(4) Work Comp – Increase due to Payroll increasing by $385,000 and rates going up 

 
(5) IM – Increase due to Carrier rate increase from $1.20 to $1.236 

 
Airport Owners & Operators – Premium doesn’t include terrorism and/or war coverage, if elected Terrorism only add 
$480, if elected Terrorism with War add $1,440 to above premium.  25% Min Earned Premium, No Flat Cancellations. 

 
Inland Marine - Premium doesn’t include Terrorism, if elected add $204 to above premium, when policy is 
received there will be a terrorism rejection form to sign and return and credit will be applied. 
   
APEI - 3 Year Agreement results in a 5% reduction ($21,024.87) to the calculated rates for the next three years, 
with the understanding that if you leave the program before the three years are up you will be expected to pay 
back the amount of the discount to the carrier, with interest plus penalties in the amount of 10% of the total 
premium charged for the last year that the insured was in the program. 

COVERAGE 

EXPIRING 
 

3 Yr. Agreement 
2018-2019 

OPTION 1 
Without 

3 Yr. Agreement 
2019-2020 

OPTION 2 
With  

3 Yr. Agreement 
2019-2020 

Property, Inland Marine, Earthquake & Flood, 
Crime $93,331.66 $120,965.14 (1) $120,965.14 (1) 
General Liability, Police Professional Liability, 
Cyber Liability $53,641.02 $106,494.02 (2) $106,494.02 (2) 

Auto Liability, UM/UIM, Physical Damage $87,207.93 $91,982.31 (3) $91,982.31 (3) 

Workers’ Compensation $102,163.70 $116,757.52 (4) $116,757.52 (4) 

APEI PKG TOTAL  $336,344.31 $436,198.99 $436,198.99 

APEI Longevity Credit   -$12,707.80 -$15,703.20 -$15,703.20 

APEI PKG TOTAL DUE AT BINDING $323,636.51 $420,495.79 $399,470.92 

Airport Owners/Operators Liability  $8,478.00 $8,250.00 (5) $8,250.00 (5) 

Inland Marine  $6,788.00 $6,788.00 (6) $6,788.00 (6) 

TOTAL ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM $338,902.51 $435,533.79 $414,508.92 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 2 

 

 

PREMIUM CREDITS 
 
Applied to 2019 – 2020  
GL:  LC and Safety Meetings    $  9,260.35 
WC: LC Training & Safety Meetings   $15,921.48 
Auto:       $               0 
Property: LC/Fire Dept./Sprinkler    $10,595.00 
3 - Year Agreement - New, Expires in 2022  $21,024.87 
Longevity Credit     $15,703.20 

Total   $72,504.90   
                                   (Gross Premium w/out Credits $471,976.57) 
 
Applied to 2018 – 2019  
GL:  LC and Safety Meetings    $  4,910.00  
WC: LC Training & Safety Meetings   $14,665.00 
Auto:       $               0 
Property: LC/Fire Dept./Sprinkler    $  8,726.00 
3 - Year Agreement - Expires in 2019   $17,149.00 
Longevity Credit     $12,707.80 

Total   $58,157.80   
                                                     

 
Applied to 2017 – 2018  
GL:  LC and Safety Meetings    $  4,462.65  
WC: LC Training & Safety Meetings   $19,369.12 
Property: LC/Fire Dept./Sprinkler   $  6,291.03 
Dividend Credit      $10,845.71 

                                                                 Total     $40,968.51 
 
 
Applied to 2016 – 2017  
GL:  LC and Safety Meetings    $  4,293.27   
WC: LC Training & Safety Meetings   $18,567.49   
Property: LC/Fire Dept./Sprinkler   $  6,583.73     
Dividend Credit      $15,907.04  

                                                                 Total     $45,351.53 
 
 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 3 

 

 PREMIUM SUMMARY – LAST 4 YEARS 
 

 
 
 
  

COVERAGE 

 
POLICY TERM 

2016-2017 

 
POLICY TERM 

2017-2018 

EXPIRING 
With  

3 Yr. Agreement 
2018-2019 

OPTION 1 
Without  

3 Yr. Agreement 
2019-2020 

OPTION 2 
With 

3 Yr. Agreement 
2019-2020 

Property, Inland Marine, Earthquake/Flood, Crime $65,761.61 $71,414.29 $93,331.66 $120,965.14 $120,965.14 

General Liability, Police Professional Liability, Cyber $36,707.44 $40,163.81 $53,641.02 $106,494.02 $106,494.02 

Auto Liability, UM/UIM, Physical Damage $65,462.89 $81,185.75 $87,207.93 $91,982.31 $91,982.31 

Workers’ Compensation $99,955.00 $105,854.49 $102,163.70 $116,757.52 $116,757.52 

APEI PKG TOTAL $267,886.94 $298,618.37 $336,344.31 $436,198.99 $436,198.99 

APEI Longevity Credit -$15,907.04 -$10,845.71 -$12,707.80 -$15,703.20 -$15,703.20 

APEI PKG TOTAL DUE AT BINDING $251,979.90 $287,772.66 $323,636.51 $420,495.79 $399,470.92 

Airport Owners/Operators Liability  $7,854.00 $7,857.00 $8,050.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 

Inland Marine   $6,470.00 $6,470.00 $6,590.00 $6,788.00 $6,788.00 

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM $275,492.88 $302,099.66 $338,276.51 $435,533.79 $414,508.92 



City of Palmer                                                                                                                                                                                   
Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Page 4 

 
  
  

 
PROPERTY INSURANCE 

 
Insurance Carrier:  Alaska Public Entity Insurance 
  
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: All Risk for direct physical damage including earthquake  
 and flood. Subject to policy terms, conditions and exclusions. 
 
Property: $200,000,000   Program Limit Shared by all participants 
 
Fine Arts: $    5,000,000    Program Limit Shared by all participants 
 
Earthquake & Flood: $  75,000,000   Program Limit Shared by all participants 
       
Equipment Breakdown: $200,000,000   Program Limit Shared by all participants  
 
Location, Limits & 
Property Covered: See Attached Schedules for Limits 
 
Co-Insurance: None 
 
Recovery Basis: Replacement Cost - Buildings, Contents, EDP 
 
Deductibles: $10,000 – Building - Per Occurrence 
 $10,000 – Earthquake/Flood - Each Claim  
 $  5,000 – Contents, EDP, Fine Arts - Each Claim 
  
  
 
 
 
Yellow highlighted items on the property schedule are values that have increased 



City of Palmer                                                                                                                                                                                  Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      Page 5 

 
    

CITY OF PALMER PROPERTY SCHEDULE 

LOC # LOCATION DESCRIPTION 
BLDG                   

VALUES 
CONTENTS 

VALUES 
OTHER 

STRUCTURES TOTAL 

1 Tourist Center Restrooms 723 S. Valley Way $250,000 $0 $0 $250,000 

2/1 Lift Station 1 South Gulkana Street $80,000 $76,000 $0 $156,000 

2/2 Lift Station 2 South Chugach Street $100,000 $89,000 $0 $189,000 

2/3 Lift Station 3 South Chugach Street $416,950 $0 $0 $416,950 

2/4 Lift Station 4 Woodruff Loop SWX $60,000 $130,000 $0 $190,000 

2/5 Lift Station 5 Mile 35 Glenn Hwy. SWX $60,000 $130,000 $0 $190,000 

3 A-Moose-Ment Park West Fern Ave. $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000 

4 Lift Station 6 Inner Springer Loop SWX $60,000 $110,000 $0 $170,000 

5 Airport Energy Module Building 901 East Yukon Street $60,000 
 

$100,000 $0 $160,000 

6 Little League Baseball Complex North Gulkana Street $0 $0 $130,000 $130,000 

7 Pressure Reducing Station 1 North Alaska Street $20,000 $12,000 $0 $32,000 

8 Pressure Reducing Station 2 North Gulkana Street $20,000 $12,000 $0 $32,000 

9 Soccer Field Bathroom Building North Gulkana Street $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000 

10 Sewer Lagoon Equipment Storage 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($121,750) 
$126,690 

($47,350) 
$48,530 $0 $175,220 

11 Farmers Market Pavilion South Valley Way $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000 
  



City of Palmer                                                                                                                                                                                  Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      Page 6 

 
    

LOC #                        LOCATION DESCRIPTION 
BLDG                   

VALUES 
CONTENTS 

VALUES 
OTHER 

STRUCTURES TOTAL 

12 Community Center Depot 610 S. Valley Way 
($1,444,700) 
$1,503,360 

($121,100) 
$124,120 $0 $1,627,480 

13 250,000 Gal.Water Storage Tank Cedar Hills Subdivision $0 $0 $15,000 $15,000 

14 1,000,000 Gal.Water Storage Tank E. Scott Road $0 $0 
($1,683,070) 
$1,751,400 $1,751,400 

15 Airport Office FAA Building 901 East Yukon Street 
($1,028,570) 
$1,070,330 

($300,000) 
$307,470 $0 $1,377,800 

16 Booster Pump Station Cedar Hills Drive $20,000 $100,000 $0 $120,000 

17 Community Development 645 E. Cope Industrial Way $156,000 $106,804 $0 $262,804 

18 City Hall 231 Evergreen 
($2,606,100) 
$2,711,910 

($452,330) 
$463,590 0 $3,175,500 

19 City Vehicle Maint PPD Car Wash 1316 Bonanza $90,440 $5,000 $0 $95,440 

20 Equipment Storage (Airport) 800 E. Evergreen 
($400,000) 
$416,240 

($150,000) 
$153,740 $0 $569,980 

21 Cold Storage Bldg. Muni Golf Course $140,400 $138,000 $0 $278,400 

22 Restrooms 645 E. Cope Industrial Way $50,762 $10,000 $0 $60,762 

23/1 Sewer Lagoon / Lab / Blower Bldg. 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($533,570) 
$555,230 

($314,540 
$322,370 $0 $877,600 

23/2 Sewer Lagoon Headworks 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($1,476,390) 
$1,536,330 $0 $0 $1,536,330 

23/3 Sewer Lagoon Main Blower Bldg. 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($503,520) 
$523,960 

($56,660) 
$58,070 $0 $582,030 

23/4 Sewer Lagoon UV Bldg. 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($1,155,350) 
$1,202,260 $0 $0 $1,202,260 

24 Tourist Center/Museum 723 S. Valley Way $387,421 $227,500 $0 $614,921 

25 Equipment Storage 645 E. Cope Industrial Way $299,820 $10,000 $0 $309,820 

26 Public Works Office 1316 Bonanza $180,000 $157,782 $0 $337,782 

27 Well House #4 & 5 950 Cope Industrial $180,000 $400,000 $0 $580,000 



City of Palmer                                                                                                                                                                                  Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      Page 7 

 
    

LOC # LOCATION DESCRIPTION 
BLDG                   

VALUES 
CONTENTS 

VALUES 
OTHER 

STRUCTURES TOTAL 

28 
 

MTA Events Center 
 

1317 Kerry Weiland Way 
($11,216,130) 
$11,671,510 

($698,580) 
$715,980 

 
$0 

 
$12,387,490 

29 
 

Fire Hall Station 31 
 

717 S. Cobb 
($1,715,690) 
$1,785,350 

($140,630) 
$144,130 

 
$0 

 
$1,929,480 

30/1 
 

Fire Maintenance Bldg. 
 

645 E. Cope Industrial Way 
($1,337,000) 
$1,391,280 

($276,600 
$283,490 

 
$0 

 
$1,674,770 

30/2 
 

Fire Training Classroom 
 

645 E. Cope Industrial Way 
 

$260,000 
 

$200,000 
 

$0 
 

$460,000 

30/3 
 

Fire Training Tower 
 

645 E. Cope Industrial Way 
 

$130,701 
 

$2,000 
 

$0 
 

$132,701 

31 
 

Golf Clubhouse 
 

Muni Golf Course 
($791,640) 
$823,780 

($81,640) 
$83,670 

 
$0 

 
$907,450 

32 
 

Reservoir Bldg. 250,000 Gal. Tank 
 

12050 E. Scott 
 

$0 
 

$0 
($573,370) 
$596,650 

 
$596,650 

33 
 

Library 
 

655 S. Valley Way 
($4,231,010) 
$4,402,790 

($1,673,660) 
$1,715,330 

 
$0 

 
$6,118,120 

34 
 

Pump house Bldg. 
 

12050 E. Scott 
 

$75,000 
 

$250,000 
 

$0 
 

$325,000 

35/1 
 

Public Safety Bldg. 1 PPD 
 

423 S. Valley Way 
($2,545,380) 
$2,648,720 

($469,430) 
$481,120 

 
$0 

 
$3,129,840 

35/2 
 

Public Safety Bldg. 2 AST/ DISP 
 

453 S. Valley Way 
($2,787,750) 
$2,900,930 

($850,000) 
$871,170 

 
$0 

 
$3,772,100 

35/3 
 

Public Safety Comm. Shelter 
 

423 S. Valley Way 
 

$150,000 
 

$1,500,000 
 

$0 
 

$1,650,000 

36 
 

Public Works Equipment Building 
 

1432 S. Bonanza Street 
 

$401,455 
 

$1,000,000 
 

$0 
 

$1,401,455 

37/1 
 

Public Works Equipment Building 
 

1316 Bonanza Street 
 

$399,750 
 

$700,000 
 

$0 
 

$1,099,750 

37/2 
 

Public Works Mech / Shop 
 

1316 Bonanza Street 
($1,651,270) 
$1,718,310 

($566,450) 
$580,560 

 
$0 

 
$2,298,870 

38 
 

Golf Course Storage 
 

Muni Golf Course 
 

$91,853 
 

$0 
 

$0 
 

$91,853 

39 
 

Church Property 
 

2390 S. Glenn Hwy. 
 

$175,000 
 

$0 
 

$0 
 

$175,000 

40 
 

Public Works Meter Building 
 

1432 S. Bonanza Street 
 

$29,000 
 

$75,000 
 

$0 
 

$104,000 

41 Bugge Park 220 S. Cobb Street $0 $0 $12,000 $12,000 

42 Hagen Park 201 E. Dolphin Avenue $0 $0 $3,500 $3,500 



City of Palmer                                                                                                                                                                                  Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      Page 8 

 
    

 

LOC # LOCATION  DESCRIPTION 
BLDG                   

VALUES 
CONTENTS 

VALUES 
OTHER 

STRUCTURES TOTAL 

43 McKechnie Park 643 W. Daron Drive $0 $0 $19,000 $19,000 

44 Meier Park 325 S. Silver Tip Drive $0 $0 $3,500 $3,500 

45 Palmer Skateboard Park 231 E. Arctic Avenue $0 $0 $60,000 $60,000 

46 Wilson Park 1115 S. Felicia Street $0 $0 $47,000 $47,000 

47 50 Kw Diesel Generator 1802 S. Brooks Street $0 $0 $79,080 $79,080 

48/1 Aeration Pond #1 1802 S. Brooks Street $0 $0 
($2,822,930) 
$2,937,540 $2,937,540 

48/2 Aeration Pond #2 1802 S. Brooks Street $0 $0 
($2,822,930) 
$2,937,540 $2,937,540 

48/3 Aeration Pond #3 1802 S. Brooks Street $0 $0 
($4,302,610) 
$4,477,300 $4,477,300 

49 Storage Building #1 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($7,690) 
$8,000 

($2,830) 
$2,900 $0 $10,900 

50 50 Kw Diesel Generator 1802 S. Brooks Street $0 $0 $79,080 $79,080 

51 Storage Building 1802 S. Brooks Street 
($7,900) 
$8,220 

($1,320) 
$1,350 $0 $9,570 

52 New Sewer Lagoon Building 1802 S. Brooks Street $12,000,000 $300,000 $0 $12,300,000 
                                                                                            

                                                                                                                        TOTALS: $53,849,752 $12,198,676 $13,148,590 $79,197,018 

 
 

TOTALS BUILDING CONTENTS 
OTHER 

STRUCTURES 
 

INLAND MARINE  
TOTAL INSURED 

VALUES 

2018-2019 $52,155,962 $12,044,206 $12,653,070 $885,042 $77,738,280 

2017-2018 $39,213,102 $11,763,586 $12,343,300 $317,079 $63,637,067 

2016-2017 $39,146,552 $11,364,119 $12,320,700 $247,010 $63,078,381 

2015-2016 $24,703,684 $13,881,940 $896,218 $247,010 $39,728,852 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 9 
   

 
INLAND MARINE – MOBILE EQUIPMENT 

 
Insurance Carrier: Alaska Public Entity Insurance 
 
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: Provides Direct Physical Loss or Damage coverage for 

scheduled equipment. Subject to policy terms, conditions, 
and exclusions. 

 
Total Insured Value: $1,113,826 
 
Coinsurance: 90% 
 
Recovery Basis: Actual Cash Value  
 

Year Make/Description Serial Number Value Deductible 
2006 Caterpillar 140 Grader 520S CAT043HTAPN00901 $247,010 $5,000 
2015  

John Deere Tractor w/Loader 
1LV3038ETEH61076 
1POD16XTEX001623 

 
$21,000 

 
$5,000 

2000 John Deere Backhoe Attachment LV0047C060210 $17,531 $5,000 
2017 GAS Sickle Bar Mowing Attachment GG95D1885 $5,200 $5,000 
2017 BE-RC5H06 Rotary Cutter Attachment 152405-RC5HDG-Y16 $2,200 $1,000 

 John Deere Rotary Broom  MOB2756X190584 $5,000 $2,500 
 John Deere Snow Blower  MO60HDB015133 $5,000 $2,500 

2018 Ski-Doo Snowmobile 2BPSCFJD0JV000714 $14,138 $5,000 
 Wausau MP318 Lader MT Blower  $228,784 $5,000 

2019 Caterpillar 950M Loader KSA00171 $266,921 $5,000 
2019 Caterpillar 160ME Motor Grader CAT0160MEN9E01003 $301,042 $5,000 

 
 
Note:  2017 John Deere Mower, Value $11,801 missing from above schedule, please 
advise if we should add it to the schedule. 
  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 10 
   

 
INLAND MARINE – RADIOS AND LAPTOPS 
 
Insurance Carrier: Allianz Global Corporate and Specialty  
 
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: Provides Direct Physical Loss or Damage coverage for 

scheduled equipment. Subject to policy terms, conditions, 
and exclusions. 

 
Total Insured Value: $549,200 – Blanket Limit 
 
Deductible: $1,000 
 
Recovery Basis: Actual Cash Value  

 
 
Item Description Location Value Rate 
Radios/Laptops Police and in Vehicles $362,600 $1.236 

Radios Public Works and in Vehicles $186,600 $1.236 
 
 
Note:  18/19 Rate $1.20 
 
 
Subject To:  Signed TRIA Form 
   Updated Schedule of Equipment 
    
  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 11 
   

 
CRIME 
 
Insurance Carrier: Alaska Public Entity Insurance 
 
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Location: City of Palmer 
 
                                                                                                      LIMIT           DEDUCTIBLE 
 
EMPLOYEE THEFT INCLUDING $1,000,000 $2,500 
FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE   
Payment for loss sustained by the insured  
caused by a dishonest act by an employee. 
 
FORGERY AND ALTERATION $1,000,000 $2,500   
Covers loss due to dishonesty in writing, 
signing, or altering checks or other 
financial instruments. 
 
THEFT OF MONEY AND SECURITIES  $1,000,000 $2,500 
Inside/Outside Premises   
 
ROBBERY OR SAFE BURGLARY OF $1,000,000 $2,500 
OTHER PROPERTY  
Inside/Outside Premises 
 
OUTSIDE THE PREMISE $1,000,000 $2,500 
 
COMPUTER FRAUD $1,000,000    $2,500 
 
FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD $1,000,000 $2,500 
 
MONEY ORDERS & COUNTERFEIT PAPER $1,000,000 $2,500 
  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 12 
   

 
GENERAL LIABILITY 
 
Insurance Carrier: Alaska Public Entity Insurance 
    
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: The insurance company agrees to pay those sums that you 

are legally obligated to pay as damages because of bodily 
injury and property damage to which the insurance 
applies. Subject to policy terms conditions and exclusions.  

 
Per Occurrence Limit: General Liability  $15,500,000 
(No Aggregate) Water/Sewer Backup Liability $15,500,000 
 Volunteer Medical Coverage $        50,000   
  
 
Annual Aggregate Limit: Public Officials E&O Liability   $15,500,000 
 Law Enforcement Liability $15,500,000                    

Employment Practices Liability  $15,500,000 
 Employee Benefits Liability $15,500,000 
  
 
Deductibles:   General Liability    $        0 
    Water/Sewer Backup Liability     $        10,000 
    Volunteer Medical Coverage   $                  0 
    Public Officials E&O Liability     $                  0 
    Law Enforcement Liability   $        10,000 

Employment Practices Liability  $        10,000 
Employee Benefits Liability   $                  0 

  
 
Audit Frequency: Annual   
 
 
Specialty 
Coverages:   Cyber Liability - $2,000,000 Limit, with a $2,500 Deductible 
    Public Entity Crime - $1,000,000 Limit, with a $2,500 Deductible
    Host Liquor Liability                                      
 
 
 
 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 13 
   

 
AUTOMOBILE 

 
Insurance Carrier: Alaska Public Entity Insurance 
    
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: The insurance company will pay all sums an insured   

legally must pay for damages as a result of bodily injury 
 or property damage to which the insurance applies, 

caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, 
maintenance or use of a covered auto. Subject to policy 
terms conditions and exclusions. 

 
Liability Limit: $15,500,000 - Bodily Injury/Property Damage    
 
Medical Payments: Included in limit above   
     
Physical Damage: Actual Cash Value, Deductible - $1,000  
 Arial Truck Deductible is $25,000 due to high value 
     
Uninsured/Underinsured 
Liability: $250,000 - Per Occurrence, with $0 Deductible   
 
Uninsured/Underinsured 
Physical Damage: $  25,000 – Per Occurrence, with $250 Deductible 
 
 
Covered Autos: See Attached Schedule  
 Non-Owned & Hired Auto Liability 
 
Recovery Basis: Actual Cash Value  
 
 
2019-2020 Units 83 
 
2018-2019 Units 81 
2017-2018 Units 80 
 
 
 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 14 

   

AUTOMOBILE SCHEDULE 
 

Location Year Make Body Type 
Insured 
Value VIN 

Physical Damage 
Deductible 

FD 1974 Seagraves Fire Truck  D73313  
PW 1977 Ford Flat Bed Fuel Truck  F37BRY45183-EG-74  
PW 1980 Western Star 8cy Dump Truck  LONFPGJ903927  
PW 1980 White Sand Truck  LONFPGJ904494  

SWR 1982 Ford Vactor  1FDYR80U7CVA48222  
PW 1983 Ford Dump Truck  1FDYU80UXDVA16302  
PW 1983 International Steam Truck  1HTAA17B9DHB13828  
FD 1984 Spartan Ladder Truck 550,000 S39RT6C08EC6643672 $25,000 
PW 1986 Ford F800 Truck  1FDYK87UOGVA34338  
FD 1987 Spartan Fire Truck 500,000 1S9AT6A0XHC185172 $25,000 
FD 1987 Ford F-350 Truck  2FTJW36L2HCB03849  
FD 1989 Ford F-350 Truck  1FDKF38G6KKB51583  
PW 1994 Chevy C-3500 Flatbed  1GBHC34K1RE307124  
FD 1994 Freightliner FL70 300,000 1FV6HFAA2RL626582 $10,000 
FD 1994 Pierce Pumper 500,000 4P1CT02UXRA000560 $25,000 
PW 1994 Chevy K-2500 Pickup  1GBGK24K9RE305128  

GARB 1995 Ford Garbage Truck  1FDZW82E5SVA17956  
PW 1996 Chevy S10 Blazer  1GCDT14X6T8134216  
FD 1997 Ford Expedition  1FMFU18LOVLC23210  
PW 1998 Chevy S10 Blazer  1GCDT14XXW8127855  
AP 1998 Ford Contour  1FAFP66L9WK257185  
PD 2000 Dodge Ram 1500 Pickup  3B7HF13Z8YG148003  
PW 2000 Dodge Ram 1500 Pickup  1B7HC162XYSS72934  
CD 2001 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEK19V31E311737  
PW 2001 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEC14V91Z155250  

SWR 2001 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEC14V21Z155302  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 15 

   

Location Year Make Body Type 
Insured  
Value VIN 

Physical Damage 
Deductible 

SWR 2001 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEC14V21Z156207  
PD 2001 Dodge Ram 2500 Pickup  3B7KF23621G219008  

ADM 2001 Dodge Durango  1B4HS28Z21F597367  
PW 2002 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEC14T12Z309840  
FD 2002 Chevy Silverado K-2500 Pickup  1GCHK29U42E228698  
PW 2002 Ford Explorer  1FMZU72E22UB04977  
PW 2004 Sterling Elgin Sweeper SC8000  49HAADBV54DN04722  
AP 2004 International Dump Truck 5600i 134,385 IHTXHAXT24JO18709 $1,000 

GARB 2004 Peterbilt 320 Garbage Truck 190,981 1NPZLTOX84D715290 $1,000 
PW 2004 International 4300 Bucket Truck 43,779 1HTMMAAL94H653960 $1,000 

WTR 2005 Chevy Pickup  1GCEC14T95Z193890  
PW 2005 Chevy Silverado C-1500 Pickup  1GCEC14T95Z193808  
PD 2005 Ford Expedition XLT  1FMPU16505LA79067  
FD 2005 Ford F-550 Fire Truck 200,000 1FDAW57P65EC56104 $1,000 

SWR 2005 International TN-Vactor Truck 201,000 1HTWDAAR15J044644 $1,000 
PD 2006 Ford Crown Victoria  2FAHP71W76X160239  
PW 2006 International 7400 SBA 6X4 90,000 1HTWGAATX6J355073 $1,000 
PD 2007 Ford F-250 Pickup 25,000 1FTSX2152EA65813 $1,000 

SWR 2007 Ford F-450 Plow & Svc Truck 48,215 1FDXF47P37EA91748 $1,000 
FD 2007 Pierce Pumper Fire Truck 500,000 4PICC01AX7A007528 $25,000 
PD 2007 Haulmark Crime Scene Trailer 22,000 16HPB20227H156078 $1,000 
PW 2007 Peterbuilt Dump Truck 71,000 2NPLLZ9X37M695220 $1,000 
PD 2009 Ford Crown Victoria 10,000 2FAHP71V59X105445 $1,000 
PD 2009 Ford Explorer XLT 10,000 1FMEU73E89UA30021 $1,000 
PD 2010 Dodge Charger 10,000 2B3AA4CT6AH145864 $1,000 
PW 2010 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 20,467 1FTWF3B58AEA90313 $1,000 
PW 2010 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 20,467 1FTWF3B5XAEA90314 $1,000 
PD 2010 Dodge Charger 20,000 2B3AA4CT0AH303566 $1,000 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 16 

   

Location Year Make Body Type 
Value 

VIN 
Physical Damage 

Deductible 
PD 2010 Dodge Charger 20,000 2B3AA4CT9AH303565 $1,000 
FD 2011 Chevy Silverado K-2500 Pickup 40,000 1GC1KVCG7BF177701 $1,000 
FD 2011 Chevy Silverado K-3500 Truck 40,000 1GC5KZCG4BZ262289 $1,000 
PD 2012 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR3DGA22272 $1,000 
PD 2012 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR3DGA22273 $1,000 
PD 2013 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR4DGC40561 $1,000 
PD 2013 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR6DGC40562 $1,000 

GARB 2013 Peterbilt 320 Garbage Truck 314,138 3BPZL70X8DF193588 $10,000 
PD 2014 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 33,000 1FD8X3B61EEB36290 $1,000 
PD 2014 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 33,000 1FD8X3B63EEB36291 $1,000 
PD 2014 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 33,000 1FD8X3B65EEB36292 $1,000 
PD 2014 Ford Expedition XL 40,000 1FMJU1G51EEF31536 $1,000 
PD 2014 Ford Expedition XL 40,000 1FMJU1G53EEF31537 $1,000 
FD 2015 International Fire Truck 400,000 1HTGSSNT2FH143231 $10,000 
PD 2015 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 33,856 1FTRF3B60FEC26527 $1,000 
PD 2015 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 33,856 1FTRF3B64FEC03364 $1,000 
PD 2015 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR0FGC66870 $1,000 
PD 2015 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR7GGD30436 $1,000 
PD 2015 Ford Explorer 35,000 1FM5K8AR2FGC66871 $1,000 
PD 2016 Ford Taurus 35.000 1FAHP2MK5GG119398 $1,000 

GARB 2017 Peterbilt Garbage Truck 330,500 3BPZL0X9HF1714117 $10,000 
FD 2015 Rosenbauer Cobra Arial Truck 1,200,000 54F3DF1OFWM11278 $25,000 
PD 2017 Ford Explorer 29,712 1FM5K8AR6HGE00994 $1,000 
PD 2017 Ford Explorer 29,712 1FM5K8AR8HGE00995 $1,000 
PD 2018 Ford Explorer 30,504 1FM5K8AR5JGB46619 $1,000 
PD 2018 Ford Explorer 30,504 1FM5K8AR1JG846620 $1,000 
PD 2018 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 31,620 1FT8X3C67JED02289 $1,000 
PD 2018 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 42,673 1FT8X3B61JED02290 $1,000 
PD 2018 Ford F-350 Super Duty Truck 40,539 1FT8X3D67JED02288 $1,000 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 17 

 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION& EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY 
 
Insurance Carrier: Alaska Public Entity Insurance  
  
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Named State: Alaska  
 
Workers’ Compensation: Statutory Benefits 
 
Employer’s Liability: Bodily Injury by Accident    $1,000,000      Each Accident 
 Bodily Injury by Disease      $1,000,000      Policy Limit 
 Bodily Injury by Disease      $1,000,000      Each Employee 
 
Subject To: 1.07  2019-2020  Experience Modification 
 1.07  2018-2019  Experience Modification 
 1.27  2017-2018  Experience Modification 
 1.12  2016-2017  Experience Modification 
 1.08  2015-2016  Experience Modification 
  
Audit Frequency: Annual  
 
Estimated Payroll: $4,531,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 18 

 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION - SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 
Note:  Volunteer Firefighters Assume $2,000 Payroll X # of Volunteers 
 
 
 
 
  

Classification Code 
2018-2019 
Estimated 

Payroll 

2018-2019 
Base  
Rate 

2019-2020 
Estimated 

Payroll 

2019-2020 
Base  
Rate 

Street, Road, Maintenance 5509 $175,000 4.5387 $178,000 4.7751 
Water Works Operations 7520 $103,000 2.9333 $105,000 3.1793 
Sewage Treatment Operations 7580 $107,000 3.4684 $170,000 3.4839 
Firefighters and Drivers  7710 $176,000 4.2315 $182,000 4.2878 
Firefighters, Drivers, Volunteers 7711 $102,000 4.2315 $155,000 4.2878 
Police/Safety Officers, Volunteers 7720 $955,000 3.4685 $1,125,000 3.7884 
Police Officer - Reserve 7720R $45,000 3.4684 $45,000 3.7884 
Municipal Garage, Retail Fuel Sales 8380 $125,000 3.7261 $128,000 3.9833 
Clerical, Professional, Elected Officials 8810 $1,800,000 0.3568 $1,920,000 0.3289 
Building Maintenance, Operations 9015 $208,000 5.3117 $172,000 5.3476 
Parks, Recreation, Ice Rinks 9102 $72,000 4.5982 $75,000 4.3366 
Refuse Collectors 9403 $56,000 5.8567 $58,000 6.4439 
General Municipal Employees Other 9410 $222,000 3.7558 $218,000 3.8615 
Total Payroll  $4,322,985  $4,531,000  



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 19 

 
AIRPORT OWNERS & OPERATORS GENERAL LIABILITY 

 
Insurance Carrier: Ace Property & Casualty Insurance Company                  Best Rating:  A+ 
 
Policy Period: July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 
 
Coverage: Airport Owners and Operators General Liability coverage, in respect of 

Bodily Injury, Personal and Advertising Injury and Property Damage 
combined. Subject to policy terms, conditions and exclusions.  

 
Limits: $10,000,000 each Occurrence/Offence in respect to Bodily Injury, 
 Personal and Advertising Injury and INSURED: Property Damage 
 Combined, subject to the following limitations:  
 
 Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $10,000,000 

 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury Aggregate $10,000,000 
 Malpractice Annual Aggregate  $10,000,000 

                 War, Hi-jacking and other Perils Aggregate             $10,000,000                                                                   
                 Fire Damage Limit Any One Fire $     100,000   

 Premises Medical Each Person $         5,000  
 

HANGARKEEPERS –NOT IN FLIGHT 
 Hangarkeepers Limit Each Occurrence $10,000,000 
 Hangarkeepers Limit Each Aircraft $10,000,000 
 
 NON-OWNED AIRCRAFT LIABILITY  $10,000,000 

  
Deductible: $0 
 
Noteworthy 
Exclusions: Noise 
 Pollution 
 Nuclear Risks 
 Date Recognition 
 Fungi or Bacteria 
 Asbestos 
 Silica or Silica Related Dust 
 

           Note:  25% Minimum Earned Premium if you cancel – No Flat Cancellations 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Palmer   Presented by:  RISQ Consulting 
  Page 20 

 
OPTIONAL COVERAGE’S FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
• POLLUTION LIABILITY – Provides coverage for cleanup costs due to a “sudden and accidental” discharge 

of any pollutant. 
 

• UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY – A form of liability insurance that protects you for claims in excess of the 
limits of your primary automobile, general liability and employer’s liability. 

 
 
 



  
    
   
 

 

     

 
Notice of Privacy Policy 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Privacy Principals 

• We do not sell customer information. 

• We do not provide customer information to persons or organizations 
outside of our office, except to companies who are doing business on 
our behalf, for their own marketing purposes. 

• We contractually require any person or organization providing 
products or services to customers on our behalf to protect the 
confidentiality of our customer information. 

• We do not share customer medical information with anyone, unless you 
specifically authorize it or unless your insurance policy contract with us 
permits us to do so. 

• We afford prospective and former customers the same protections as 
existing customers with respect to the use of personal information. 

 

 

 
 

INFORMATION WE MAY COLLECT 
 
We collect and use information we believe is necessary to administer our 
business, to advise you about our products and services and to provide you 
with customer service.  We may collect and maintain several types of 
customer information needed for these purposes, such as those below. 
 
Types of information we may collect and how we gather it: 
 
• From you: on applications for insurance or on other forms, through 

telephone or in-person interviews with your agent or a customer 
service representative, such as your address or telephone number. 

• From your transactions: such as your payment history with us, 
underwriting and claim documents. 

• From other agencies: such as your driving record, your credit history 
or claims history. 

HOW WE USE INFORMATION ABOUT YOU 
 
We use customer information to underwrite your policies, process 
your claims, ensure your proper billing, service your accounts and to 
offer you other insurance products that we believe may suit your 
needs. 
 
We share information about our transactions (such as payment of 
premium) and experiences (such as loss history) within our agency to 
better serve you and to assist in meeting your current product and 
service needs. We may also disclose customer information about you 
to persons or organizations outside our agency as permitted or 
required by law, including companies that perform marketing 
services for us or with whom we have joint marketing agreements.  
These agreements allow us to provide a broader selection of 
insurance products to you. 
 
We share customer information as necessary to process your claims 
and protect you against fraud and unauthorized transactions.  

SHARING OF INFORMATION WITHIN RISQ CONSULTING 
 
What we share:  Unless you tell us not to we may share information, within departments at RISQ Consulting, that was obtained from your application, such as your occupation; or information from a consumer 
report such as your credit history.  We may also verify information provided by you, such as your driving record, or information regarding your employment, such as your employment history.  
 
Why we share:  We may share information about you within our agency to underwrite your policies, measure your interest in our products and services or to monitor customer trends. 
 
If you prefer that we not share this information within our agency, please call us at (907) 365-5100 your direction not to share this information does not limit us from sharing certain information, about your 
transactions with us (such as your name, address or payment history) or your experiences (such as your claims activity.)  This choice does not apply to our efforts to market products and services to you.   

We maintain physical, electronic and organizational safeguards to 
protect customer information.  We continually review our policies 
and procedures, monitor our computer network and test the strength 
of our security in order to help ensure the safety of our customer 
information 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-052 Page 1 of 3 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-052 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an Assignment and Consent to 
Assignment of Lease Agreement with CIG, LLC (Assignor) and PAAQ Hangar Association (Assignee) for 
PMA Lease No. 19-001 on Lease Lot 12, Block 3, Palmer Municipal Airport for the Purpose of Transferring 
the Lease to a Newly Formed T Hangar Association   
 
Agenda of: June 25, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance   6/7/2019 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-052 Page 2 of 3 

Attachment(s):  
 Assignment and Consent to Assignment Agreement for PMA No. 19-001   
 Declaration of PAAQ Hangar Association  
 PMA No. 19-001 Insurance Requirement 
 

Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The developer of the new 10 unit T-hangar complex (CIG, LLC) is requesting that the City of Palmer assign 
the underlying airport lease (PMA No. 19-001) to the newly formed PAAQ Hangar Association so that they 
can begin to market, collect earnest monies and sell the individual units upon their completion. 
 
The recently completed PAAQ Hangar Association documents as outlined above have been vetted and 
approved by both the Airport Superintendent and the City Attorney.  Without the City’s approval and 
document concurrence, the documents cannot be recorded with the subsequent pre-sales of these units 
undertaken.  As with all of these types of developments, the developer has dually assumed the leadership 
role in both entities until enough units are sold to transfer the association control directly to the new unit 
owners. 
 
Additionally, this legislation recommends the requirements for the individual unit owners insurance, as 
well as consent to proprietary lease agreement upon unit sales now and future transactions as outlined 
below: 
 
Insurance Requirements for Individual Unit Owners: 
It is recommended that all unit owners must also comply with the same insurance requirement as the 
underlying master lease agreement PMA No. 19-001.  After extensive consultation with numerous 
insurance agencies, $1M appears to be the basic bottom limit of any airport premises liability policy offered 
in today’s insurance market place.  It also protects not only the City of Palmer, but the other unit owners 
in case there is a substantial loss which would affect the other unit owners.  Merrill Field and Kenai 
Municipal Airports use this approach to insurance when approving their individual hangar associations.  
 
Consent to Proprietary Leases:    
It is recommended that the “Consent to Proprietary Lease” agreement for the ten (10) units in the PAAQ 
Hangar Association, be a City Administrative function now and for all future transfers under this lease.  
The consent would be granted by the City Manager or his designee under the following criteria without 
additional council approval: 

• The PAAQ Hangar Association is not in default of their lease agreement. 
• The PAAQ Hangar Association has approved the sale or unit transfer. 
• The unit will be used for aircraft storage and maintenance. 
• A proper insurance binder or certificate of insurance (as outlined above) has been obtained prior 

to closing. 
• City Information sheet for the new unit owner is obtained 
• Copies of sales transaction documents are obtained prior to closing 
• A copy of the recorded Proprietary Lease is obtained and of any Termination of Proprietary Lease, 

if applicable for future transactions.   
 
These consent agreement guidelines for individual T hangar unit transfers would have no material effect 
on the underlying master lease approved by the City Council.  Would save valuable City Administration 
and City Council time and would also speed up the closing process for the real estate transaction by a 
minimum of three (3) weeks, making the Palmer Municipal Airport competitive in the airport market place 
for these types of developments. 
 
If this undertaking proceeds well, the developer will begin the construction of the new hangar complex 
on the adjacent lease lot 13 this fall. 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-052 Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-052 Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute an 
Assignment and Consent to Assignment of Lease Agreement with CIG, LLC (Assignor) and PAAQ Hangar 
Association (Assignee) for PMA Lease No. 19-001 on Lease Lot 12, Block 3, Palmer Municipal Airport for 
the purpose of transferring the lease to a newly formed T Hangar Association.    
 



 

 

 
 

City of Palmer ● Palmer Municipal Airport 
231 W. Evergreen Avenue ● Palmer, AK 99645 

Phone: 907-745-3271     Fax: 907-745-0930 
 
 

 
ASSIGNMENT AND CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT  

 
In consideration of and in reliance upon the above assumption and promises contained in 
this instrument, the City of Palmer hereby consents to the foregoing Assignment of Lease 
Agreement PMA No. 19-001 on Lot 12, Block 3, for the Palmer Municipal Airport, Palmer 
Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska between CIG, LLC, (“Assignor”) 
to PAAQ Hangar Association, (“Assignee”).  
 
Current Palmer Municipal Airport Lease No. 19-001 (The Airport Lease) is in Effect. Except 
as otherwise expressly stated herein, nothing in this Assignment and Consent to 
Assignment of PMA Lease No. 19-001 is intended to amend or alter any of the terms and 
conditions of the Airport Lease or any amendments thereto previously executed by Lessor 
and Lessee. All terms and conditions remain in full force and effect.  

 
Amendment(s) 
 
None   
 
Notices 
Any notices required to be sent in accordance with the terms of this Lease, including legal 
process, shall be sent in writing by registered or certified mail, to the parties at the 
following addresses unless otherwise notified in writing and deemed to be received when 
so sent: 
 
Lessor’s address: City Manager 
   City of Palmer 
   231W. Evergreen Ave., Palmer, AK 99645 
 
Assignor’s address: CIG, LLC 
   Attn. David C. and Dana M. Cruz 
   3852 Clark Wolverine Road   
   Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
Assignee’s address: PAAQ Hangar Association 
   Attn. David C. Cruz 
   3852 Clark Wolverine Road   
   Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
This Assignment and Consent to Assignment of lease will not release the Assignor from 
obligations under the Airport Lease should the new Lessee default. In the event of the 
default of the Assignee, the lease agreement shall revert to the Assignor. 

 



 

 

LESSOR: CITY OF PALMER 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
     Nathan E. Wallace, City Manager   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
ASSIGNOR:  CIG, LLC 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      Dana M. Cruz, Manager 
       
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      David C. Cruz, Manager 
 
 
ASSIGNEE AND LESSEE:  PAAQ HANGAR ASSOCIATION 
 
    
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      David C. Cruz, President 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      Dana M. Cruz, Secretary 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the ______day of ______________, 2019, before 
me the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned 
and sworn, personally appeared, Nathan E. Wallace, known to me to be the identical 
individual described in and who executed the within and foregoing Assignment and 
Consent to Assignment Agreement as City Manager of the City of Palmer, freely and 
voluntarily on behalf of the City of Palmer for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year last above written. 
 
_____________________ 
Notary Public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: ____________ 
 
 



 

 

  
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2019, before me, 
the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dana 
M. Cruz, Manager of the limited liability company named in the forgoing instruments, 
acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is authorized by the 
limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act and deed of 
the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2019, before me, 
the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, David 
C. Cruz, Manager of the limited liability company named in the forgoing instruments, 
acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is authorized by the 
limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act and deed of 
the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ____________, 2019, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, David 
C. Cruz, President of the Corporation named in the forgoing instruments, acknowledged 
to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is authorized by the Corporation to 
execute the foregoing instruments as the free act and deed of the said Corporation for 
the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ____________, 2019, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dana M. 
Cruz, Secretary of the Corporation named in the forgoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is authorized by the Corporation to execute 
the foregoing instruments as the free act and deed of the said Corporation for the uses 
and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 

































































































































PMA No. 19-001 Insurance Requirement 

 

Section 4.3 Insurance 
A. Lessee, at its own expense, shall secure and maintain in full force at all times during the 

term of this Lease: 
1. Commercial general liability. Commercial general liability insurance with a single 

occurrence liability limit of $1,000,000 and an aggregate of $2,000,000 insuring 
against liability of Lessee, its officers, contractors, licensees, agents, employees, 
guests, invites and authorized representatives, arising out of and/or in connection 
with Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 

2. Airport premises liability. Airport premises liability insurance on an occurrence basis 
with a single combined liability limit of not less than $1,000,000 occurrence and 
$2,000,000 aggregate limit for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. If applicable, third-party aircraft liability insurance with a single combined liability 
limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence; 

4. Commercial property insurance in the amount of replacement costs. 
5. The Lessor reserves the right to require Lessee to provide pollution insurance as 

warranted by the proposed use of the Premises. 
B.  This insurance required under this Section shall: 

1.  Name the Lessor as an “additional insured” 
2.  Contain a clause that the insurer will not cancel or change the insurance without 

first giving the Lessor thirty (30) days prior written notice; 
3.  Be with an insurance company qualified to do business in the State of Alaska with 

a financial rating of at least “A” as rated in current Best’s Insurance Reports; 
4.  Include a waiver of subrogation clause by which the insurer waives all rights of 

subrogation against the Lessor for payments made under the policy; and 
5.  Not contain a damage deductible for each and every loss that exceeds $10,000. 

C.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with proof of insurance coverage in the form of a certificate 
of insurance, and if requested by the Lessor, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of 
the policy(ies). Failure to maintain such insurance in effect shall constitute grounds for 
immediate termination of this lease. Lessor may at its option purchase said insurance and 
charge the expense thereof to Lessee, which expense Lessee shall assume and pay. 

D.   To reasonably protect itself, Lessor may adjust these minimum insurance requirements 
and add types of insurance or both by giving Lessee written notice of such adjustment 
ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of each five (5) year interval of the term of this 
Lease. Lessor may also adjust these minimum insurance requirements at any time if 
Lessee’s use of the Premises changes, and in such event, Lessor shall give Lessee thirty 
(30) days written notice of such adjustment. 

E.  The requirements of insurance coverage do not relieve Lessee from any other obligation 
under this Lease.  

 





__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, Special City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
May 28, 2019 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on May 28, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska.  Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich  
Steve Carrington 

Linda Combs 
Sabrena Combs 
Pete LaFrance, Deputy Mayor

 
 Council Member David Fuller was absent and excused.   
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: L. Combs 

Seconded by: Berberich 
Vote: 6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent (Fuller) 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None. 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation from Alaska Department of Transportation Project Engineer 
Todd Smith Regarding the Glenn Highway Reconstruction Project 

 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Mr. Todd Smith, Alaska Department of Transportation Project Engineer, provided a summary of recent 
activity and expected activity on the Glenn Highway Reconstruction Project. Mr. Smith fielded general 
questions. 
 
The Council adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 6:30 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting. 
 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, City Council Special Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

G. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
None. 
 
H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
No direction given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, Regular City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
May 28, 2019 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on January 9, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska.  Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich  
Steve Carrington 
Linda Combs 

Sabrena Combs 
David Fuller 
Pete LaFrance, Deputy Mayor

 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney 
Lance Ketterling, Chief of Police 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction to Ordinance No. 19-010: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.04.021 

Creating Designated Council Seats 
b. Action Memorandum No. 19-048: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Five-Year Contract with the Matanuska-Susitna Borough to Provide Fire Emergency Response to 
the Greater Palmer Fire Service Area 

c. Action Memorandum No. 19-049: Removing Board Member Rhonda Wohlbach from the 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. April 16, 2019, Joint City Council and Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda, Consent Agenda, and Minutes 

Moved by: L. Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 

Vote: 7 Yes/0 No 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 

1. Presentation from Alaska Bible College Representative Ray Rose Regarding Parking and General 
Matters 

 
Mr. Ray Rose, Alaska Bible College Vice President of Institutional Advancement, spoke to the purpose of 
Alaska Bible College (ABC), history of ABC, and future plans for ABC. Mr. Rose asked for the City’s help in 
repairing the ABC parking lot. 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 

 
F. REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Wallace entered his written report into the record. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 
City Clerk Alley reported on the 2019 AML Summer Conference. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor DeVries highlighted her written report, announced upcoming meetings, and requested nominations 
for Palmer Pride Picnic awards. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report 
 
None. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Larry Hill updated the Council of the Alaska’s 49th State Street Rodders Car Show, expressed appreciation 
for the city’s support for the event, and suggested the city look into a code enforcement committee. 
 
Miss Cambria Palmer expressed her appreciation for the sidewalk and street plowing done by the city. 
 
Ms. Kenda Huling testified on the itinerant vendor permit process, a fair process for all vendors, notice 
provided to all vendors, and code enforcement at events. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Ordinance No. 19-007: Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 9.39 Pertaining to Excessive Police 
Responses 

 
Council Member S. Combs summarized the legislative report as written in the packet. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 19-007.  
 
Mr. Caesar Marciales spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-007. 
 
Mrs. Hillary Palmer spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-007. 
 
Ms. Patty Haugom spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-007. 
 
Ms. Kathy Bishop spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-007. 
 
Ms. Megha Hammaker spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-007. 
 
Hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
 

Main Motion: To Adopt Ordinance No. 19-007 
Moved by: L. Combs 

Seconded by: Fuller 
 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

Council Member Fuller asked for the city manager’s and chief of Police’s perspective on the ordinance. City 
Manager Wallace answered he was not sure this particular ordinance would solve the problems spoke about 
in public testimony; the city was not staffed for it; the legislation changes the city to an enforcement city 
versus compliance, puts the city into the eviction business, and had little enforcement behind it; enforcement 
would increase legal fees for injunction costs; and require additional staffing and resources.  
 
Chief of Police Lance Ketterling expressed concern for the vagaries for staff that would have to enforce the 
ordinance, vagueness and subjective language, and potential lawsuits from civil rights organizations. 
 
City Attorney Michael Gatti spoke to legal issues, injunction process, and potential increased cost for 
enforcement. 
 

Motion to Postpone: To No Later Than September and Direct Staff to Provide a Substitute 
Ordinance with Recommended Staff Changes 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: L. Combs 

Vote: 7 Yes/0 No 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
2. Ordinance No. 19-008: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 2.18 Pertaining to Boards and 

Commissions Generally 
 
Mayor Devries called a recess at 8:29 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 8:41 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Alley summarized the staff report. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 19-008. Seeing no one come forward to speak 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
 

Main Motion: To Adopt Ordinance No. 19-008 
Moved by: Fuller 

Seconded by: L. Combs 
Vote: 7 Yes/0 No 

Action: Motion Carried 
 

3. Ordinance No. 19-009: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 2.30 Pertaining to Board of 
Economic Development 

 
City Clerk Alley summarized the staff report. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 19-009.  
 
Ms. Kenda Huling spoke in favor of Ordinance No. 19-009 and suggested adding a membership requirement 
that at least two members should own a business in city limits. 
 
Hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
 

Main Motion: To Adopt Ordinance No. 19-009 
Moved by: Fuller 

Seconded by: L. Combs 
Vote: 7 Yes/0 No 

Action: Motion Carried 
 



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: May 28, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported the city manager’s written report was the Item Placed on the Table. 
 
K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None. 
 
L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Fuller and Council Member L. Combs supported directing staff to report back on code 
enforcement options for the city. 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 



           Mayor’s Memo 
Council Meeting report – June 25, 2019 

       NOTES AND UP COMING EVENTS 

Scottish Games – Fair Grounds – June 29 

Special Legislative Session – July 8 Wasilla Jr. 
High 

Agenda Setting Meeting –  July 11, August 1 

Mayors/Manager Meeting – July 18 

 

 

Palmer Pride Days – Palmer Depot – July 26 
I am requesting Award Nominations for Palmer Pride – we do 
Citizen of the Year  (last year there were two – Barbara Hunt 
and John Lee)  

New Business of the Year  - Oldest Business in Palmer 

Golden Shovel (for best snow removal off sidewalks) 

 Yard Beautification awards  – we give several of these each 
year. 

Other awards – we are open to nominations, ideas and 
suggestions from the community. 

We want and value your input and participation. 
 

Edna DeVries  Mayor 
907-355-9933       edevries@palmerak.org 



 
 

 

Member of the National League of Cities and the National Association of Counties 

Position Statement Guidelines 
 
The AML “Position Statement” is developed by the AML Legislative Position Committee, which is 
comprised of appointed or elected officials from member municipalities who have expertise and a firm 
understanding of local government roles and responsibilities. The Committee also includes one At-Large 
member, the AML Executive Director and the current AML board President. 
 
Please review the Draft 2020 Position Statement and recommend changes along the following 
guidelines: 

• AML Principles – these are not meant to be changed annually but inform the rest of the 
document. 

• AML Legislative Priorities – these will come from the August legislative conference 
• AML Federal Priorities – these will come from the August legislative conference 
• AML Position Statements – these are statements that we encourage members to add to or 

suggest edits for 
 
For changes to the position statements, consider their broad applicability and use: 

• Are they consistent with our principles? 
• Do they advance policy that is beneficial to local governments? 
• Do they negatively impact any local government? 
• Are they statewide or have statewide implications? 
• Are they actionable? 

 
The Legislative Position Committee will edit for brevity and applicability but ensure that changes reflect 
the intent of the sponsor.  In order to ensure that the position statements remain true to the goal of 
reflecting the will of our members and AML’s philosophy and mission, changes to the position 
statements will be considered by both the committee and the membership. 
 
For changes to the Draft 2020 Position Statement to be considered during the AML Summer Legislative 
Conference, they must be received no later than July 31, 2019. The Legislative Position Committee will 
review all recommended changes by August 15. The Draft 2020 Position Statement will then be sent to 
all members prior to the AML Annual Business meeting in November. For changes to be considered, 
members must send changes to the AML office no later than October 4, 2019. Changes to this document 
will not be accepted after this date.   
 
The Position Committee shall debate and act upon suggested changes for final recommendations to the 
membership during the Position Committee meeting on November 20, 2019.  If the Position Committee 
does not accept the change, the member’s governing body may bring it to the floor at the General 
Session on November 20, 2019 for action.   
 
Those changes accepted by the Position Committee shall be discussed during the General Session on 
November 21, 2019 for incorporation into the Position Statement. The amended Position Statement 
shall be voted on by the full membership at the AML Business Meeting to be held on the morning of 
November 22, 2019.  
 
Please email your resolutions to: nils@akml.org; fax to: (907) 463-5480; or mail to: AML, One Sealaska 
Plaza Suite 200, Juneau, AK 99801 

mailto:nils@akml.org


DRAFT * JUNE 1, 2019 

 
 
 
AML Principles 

• Support the Alaska Constitution’s mandate “to provide for maximum local self-government.” 
• Support policies that reduce tax burdens on local government and reimburse for State-

mandated exemptions. 
• Support State revenue-sharing as an investment in and support for municipal governance.  
• Support adequate State funding for basic public services and infrastructure, such as: education, 

public safety, health, emergency services, and transportation that is necessary for strong and 
vibrant municipalities. 

• Oppose unfunded and underfunded State or Federal legislative and administrative mandates. 
• Oppose any efforts to reduce local revenues and local revenue authorities. 
• Oppose State or Federal policies that shift responsibilities to local governments without a 

negotiated agreement that includes adequate and full annual funding.  

AML 2020 State of Alaska Legislative Priorities 
 
AML 2020 Federal Congressional Priorities 
 

AML Draft 2020 Legislative Position Statements 

Municipal Governance (Title 29) 
• Support increased capacity within and professionalization of State tax assessment. 
• Support improvements to records retention, public records access, and public notice. 
• Support issuance of a municipal impact fiscal note within proposed legislation. 

Community Assistance and Revenue Sharing 
• Support a baseline floor of $60 million annually, and encourage a long-term, sustainable solution. 
• Support a method to waive debt, forgive loans, or otherwise bolster “stressed” communities. 

PERS/TRS Changes 
• Support amendments to termination studies and penalties for leaving PERS/TRS. 
• Support the development of a pathway to decrease overall unfunded liability. 
• Oppose any cost shift of the State “on behalf” payment over 22%.  

Fiscal Policy 
• Support agency and programmatic efficiency and right-sizing, but oppose cost-shifting to 

municipalities and eliminating essential services. 
• Support the development of a broad-based tax to increase state revenue. 

Public Safety 
• Increase officer recruitment and retention. 
• Support and strengthen the VPSO program. 
• Support state efforts to decrease access to and impacts from opioids. 



DRAFT * JUNE 1, 2019 

Economic Development 
• Support increased investment in diversification and small business development. 
• Support increased investment in training and workforce development. 
• Support state responsiveness to local economic development planning. 

Education 
• Support early childhood education, career and technical education, and preparing, attracting and 

retaining qualified educators. 
• Support for accountability and assessment that meets federal requirements and maximizes local 

control. 
• Oppose any reduction in school funding and support investment in infrastructure and deferred 

maintenance. 

Fisheries 
• Support for appropriately funded DF&G and increased investment in fisheries research and 

outreach. 
• Support continued investment in port and harbor infrastructure. 
• Support an active role in federal fisheries management, and clean water, as well as transboundary 

negotiations. 

Energy 
• Support for vetting of and investing in energy projects, processes and programs that decrease 

energy costs 

Transportation 
• Support the establishment of an Alaska Transportation Fund that can be used to match or 

supplement federal funding, and invest in multi-modal transportation infrastructure. 

Minerals 
• Support responsible resource development and the reduction of investment barriers alongside 

improved environmental risk management. 
• Oppose additional state tax on mineral development and support robust local government property, 

or payment in lieu of, taxes. 

Water, Wastewater and Sanitation 
• Support increased State investment in maintenance and infrastructure upgrades. 



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-011 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 19-011 

 
Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 2.04.041 and 2.05.030 Establishing Council Member 
and Mayor Term Limits 
 
Agenda of: June 11, 2019 – Introduction 
 June 25, 2019 – Public Hearing 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ___________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
  

Originator Information: 

Originator: Council Members Steve Carrington and David K. Fuller 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-011 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 19-011 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
To discuss the possibility of limiting the council members to two consecutive three-year terms and the 
mayor to two additional consecutive three-year terms. The ordinance does not address lifetime term 
limits.   
 
Matters of consideration could be: 
 How Many Consecutive Years to Serve 
 How Many Consecutive Years to Wait Before Serving Again 
 Date Term Limits Become Effective 

 
Palmer Charter 3.2. Terms of Office states the terms of two councilmen shall expire each year, except 
that in each third year, counting from 1963, the terms of the Mayor and of two Councilmen shall expire. 
When appointments are made to fill vacancies in the manner provided by Section 2.13(a) of this Charter, 
appointees shall qualify for and assume the duties of office within ten days after appointment, unless such 
time be extended for not more than sixty days by the Council.  
 
Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.04.041. Term of office states the term of office of each council member 
shall be for three years and shall commence on the Monday following his or her election. 
 
Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.05.030. Term of office states the term of office of the mayor shall be 
for three years and shall commence on the Monday next following his or her election. 
 
The intent of term limits is for council members to serve no more than two consecutive terms without 
taking a one-year break. It is not the intent for a council member to have a break in service between 
serving as a council member and mayor. A member of the council whom is elected to serve as the mayor, 
may serve two additional terms, for a total of four, at which time a break in service is required. 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-011 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 19-011 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Amending Palmer Municipal Code Sections 
2.04.041 and 2.05.030 Establishing Council Member and Mayor Term Limits 
 

WHEREAS, the city council wished to explore the adoption of term limits for the council 
and mayor; and 

 
WHEREAS, if adopted, the new language will become effective to terms of members of 

the council elected in the 2019 Regular Election and elected thereafter, so that no terms served 
prior to the 2019 Regular Election would count toward the term limits of terms served. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.04.041 is hereby amended to read as follows 
(new language is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 
 
2.04.041. Term of office  
The term of office of each council member shall be for three years and shall commence on the 
Monday following his or her the election. A person serving as a council member may not serve 
for more than two consecutive, full terms without a break in service for at least one full year. No 
member of the council shall serve more than four consecutive terms, as the mayor and a council 
member, without a break in service for at least one full year. Years of service of an appointee 
filling a vacated seat does not count toward the total term limit. 
 
 Section 4. Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.05.030 is hereby amended to read as follows 
(new language is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 
 
2.05.030. Term of office  
The term of office of the mayor shall be for three years and shall commence on the Monday next 
following his or her the election. A person serving as the mayor may not serve for more than two 
consecutive, full terms without a break in service for at least one full year. No member of the 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Council Members 

Carrington and Fuller 
Date: June 11, 2019 

Public Hearing: June 25, 2019 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-011 Page 2 of 2 

council shall serve more than four consecutive terms, as the mayor and a council member, without 
a break in service for at least one full year. Years of service of an appointee filling a vacated seat 
does not count toward the total term limit. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 19-011 shall take effect upon adoption by the 
city of Palmer City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2019.  
 
 
 

 
_________________________ 

 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-012 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 19-012 

 
Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 1.08.020(A) Penalty Surcharge and Amending the 
2019 City of Palmer Fine Schedule to Reflect the New Surcharge 
 
Agenda of: June 11, 2019 – Introduction 
 June 25, 2019 – Public Hearing 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ___________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
  

Originator Information: 

Originator: Lance Ketterling, Chief of Police 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
X  Finance   5/24/19 
  Fire    

X  Police 
 

 
 

5-15-19 
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 

 

Signing for Nathan Wallace as Acting City Mgr. 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 0.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
X Not budgeted   
 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-012 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 19-012 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Both the City of Palmer and the State of Alaska collect surcharge penalties for violations of law in addition 
to other fines and penalties.  Alaska Statute 29.25.074 (a) states “A municipality may not enforce a penalty 
for violation of an ordinance for which a surcharge is required to be imposed under AS 12.55.039 unless 
the municipality authorizes the imposition of and provides for the collection of the surcharge.” 
 
The City does enforce municipal ordinances which might fall under AS 12.55.039, and as such Palmer is 
required to collect a surcharge for them which is sent to the State general fund.  The State periodically 
changes the surcharge amounts, typically by raising them.  For example, in 2018 the State legislature 
raised surcharges to twice what is currently collected in Palmer Municipal Code. 
 
These changes at the State level occur at times and in amounts not known to the City beforehand.  As 
such, it is practical for the City to assess surcharge amounts by adopting language into Palmer Municipal 
Code which sets the amount at that specified in State law rather than a specific dollar value.  This will 
prevent unnecessary rewrites of Palmer Municipal Code and ensure the City is complying with collecting 
the correct amount.   
 
This ordinance also amends the City of Palmer Fine Schedule to be worded in accordance with the changes 
made to Palmer Municipal Code. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 19-012 Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 1.08.020(A) Penalty Surcharge 
and Amending the 2019 City of Palmer Fine Schedule to Reflect the New Fine. 
 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-012 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Ordinance No. 19-012 

 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 
1.08.020(A) Penalty Surcharge and Amending the 2019 City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
to Reflect the New Surcharge 
 

WHEREAS, the state of Alaska makes periodic changes to the maximum allowable penalty 
surcharge for violations of law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Palmer collects a surcharge penalty for violations of Palmer 

Municipal Code as required by Alaska State Statute; and  
 
WHEREAS, adhering to the current State of Alaska surcharge penalty amount is the most 

efficient and effective way to collect such costs. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 1.08.020(A) is hereby amended to read as 
follows (new language is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 
 
A. In addition to any fine or other penalty prescribed by law, a person who pleads guilty or nolo 
contendere to, forfeits bail for, or is convicted of: 
 

1. A violation of this code comparable to a misdemeanor offense under AS 28.33.030, 
28.33.031, 28.35.030 or 28.35.032 and adopted under AS 28.01.010 shall be assessed the 
maximum surcharge allowable pursuant to AS 12.55.039 and 29.25.074 of $75.00;  
 

2. A misdemeanor or other violation of this code if a sentence of incarceration may be 
imposed for the misdemeanor or ordinance violation, other than a provision identified in 
subsection (A)(1) of this section, shall be assessed the maximum surcharge allowable pursuant 
to Alaska Statutes 12.55.039 and 29.25.074 of $50.00; and 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Wallace 

Date: June 11, 2019 
Public Hearing: June 25, 2019 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#28.33.030
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#28.33.031
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#28.35.030
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#28.35.032
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#28.01.010


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 19-012 Page 2 of 2 

3. A misdemeanor or a violation of this code if a sentence of incarceration may not be 
imposed for the misdemeanor or ordinance violation shall be assessed the maximum surcharge 
allowable pursuant to Alaska Statutes 12.55.039 and 29.25.074 of $10.00 if the fine or bail 
forfeiture amount for the offense is $30.00 or more. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 19-012 shall take effect upon adoption by the 
city of Palmer City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2019.  
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-053 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-053 

 
Subject:  Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City Council’s Statement of Non-
Objection to Liquor License No. 649 for Klondike Mike’s Saloon, Located at 820 S. Colony Way 
 
Agenda of: June 25, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Norma Alley, City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ Unknown 
 

This legislation (√): 
√ Creates revenue in the amount of: $ Unknown 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-053 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Notice for License No. 649 – Transfer of Ownership  
 Application AB-01 – Transfer of Ownership 
 Review Form 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Klondike Mike’s Saloon has applied for a change in ownership of their current Liquor License #649. State 
law requires local governing bodies (per AS 04.21.080, this is defined as the City Council) to review 
requests pertaining to liquor licenses within their municipalities. The City may voice a non-objection or may 
file a protest to a request. 
 
Application AB-01 is to change the licensee’s controlling interest percentages. 
 
As of the date of packet publication, the City Clerk’s Office had not received any written comments or 
phone calls from the public expressing concern or support for this application. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-034 directing the City Clerk to notify the State of Alaska of the 
City Council’s statement of non-objection to Liquor License No. 649 for Klondike Mike’s Saloon, Located 
at 820 S. Colony Way. 



 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Main: 907.269.0350

 
June 11, 2019 
 
City of Palmer 
Attn:  City Clerk   
Via Email:   cityclerk@palmerak.org  
Cc: adam.bradway@matsugov.us 
 
License Type: Beverage Dispensary License Number: 649 
Licensee: U-Line Beverage Co., Inc. 
Doing Business As: Klondike Mike’s 
Premises Address: 820 S. Colony Way 

  
☐ New Application ☒ Transfer of Ownership Application  
☐ Transfer of Location Application ☐ Transfer of Controlling Interest Application 
                     
We have received a completed application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable. To protest the application referenced above, please submit your protest 
within 60 days and show proof of service upon the applicant. 
 
AS 04.11.491 – AS 04.11.509 provide that the board will deny a license application if the board finds that 
the license is prohibited under as a result of an election conducted under AS 04.11.507. 
 
AS 04.11.420 provides that the board will not issue a license when a local governing body protests an 
application on the grounds that the applicant’s proposed licensed premises are located in a place within 
the local government where a local zoning ordinance prohibits the alcohol establishment, unless the 
local government has approved a variance from the local ordinance. 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
  

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org
mailto:adam.bradway@matsugov.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


F� AB-Gl-; Transfer license Application 

What Is this form? 

This transfer license applic:adon fomi 1$_ requfn!d for al n,dlvlduals or. entities seefclnt io apply for-ttietnlristl=rofownership •nd/or 
locitlon of an·tJCl$Ung JlcpJr llcense.ApplkantsshouJd �-Qt� MIIM....._al\CIO.WD-ofdte-... 
� �. NI fields Qfthls form must be completed. �-AS-04.1L2Ci0, A.$·04,11.280, AS 04.;ll.290;-and 
3AAC'304.105. 

llllsfor,n 111111tbe� and sulinillledtol,ll,tl:Ysmalnqffice, aicq with •other requndformsand
��-.... �wllbe.Clllllllder9d ...... 

T,._.lp: 

J&I ResUlat transfer 

OTransferwlth security in.

□ ln�untaryretransfer

�Olla: 

,.,_......,--= 

,-a.: 

(FonnMGl] (rw 10/10/2016) 

Se.� 1 _ ,.,....,_ lnformatJon 

OfffCEUSlcar 

n•••e 

lbflseYft,s: 

-

ZIP: 

_IQS3°18Z-



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
550 W t1' Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https:ljwww.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

Section 2 - Transferee Information 

Enter information for the nel'J applicant and/or location seeking to be licensed. 

Licensee: : I \ i\-' r (t•;.p · _-.6 1., u ,�, ,._ --, • \..:l . .V. I 

Doing Business As:

Premises Address: 

Cit\(: 

Community Council: 

Designated Licensee: 

Contact Phone: 

Contact Email: 

Yes No 

'
,J 

. ' : --�- . 

State: ,.., f , 
(• . 
�� 

ZIP: 

Seasonal license? D D If "Yesn, write your six-month operating period: __________ _

Section 3 - Promises Dnformation 

Premises to be licensed Is: 

D an existing facility D a new building D a proposed building 

The next two questions must be completed by beverage dispensary (including tourism) and package store applicants only: 

What is the distance of the shortest pedestrian route from the public entrance of the building of your proposed premises to 

the outer boundaries of the nearest school ounds? Include the unit of measurement in our answer. 

What is the distance of the shortest pedestrian route from the public entrance of the building of your proposed premises to 

the publfc entrance of the nearest church buildin ? Include the unit of measurement in ur answer. 

[Form AB-01) (rev 10/10/2016) 

�- J
.. <: ... ' .. ,• ' 

- ......... 

PageZof7 



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
550 W 7'h Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https:ljwww.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

Section 4 - Sole Proprietor Ownership Information 

This section must be completed by any sole proprietor who Is applying for a license. Entities should skip to Section 5. 
If more space is needed, please attach a separate sheet with the required information. 
The following information must be completed for each licensee and each affiliate (spouse). 

This individual is an: D applicant Oaffiliate 

Name: 

Address: 

City: I State: l I ZIP: I 

This individual is an: D applicant Oaffiliate 

Name: 

Address: 

City: I State: l I ZIP: j 

Section 5 - Entity Ownership lnfonnatlon 

This section must be completed by any entity, including a corporation, limited liability company (LLC}, partnership, or limited 
partnership, that is applying for a license. Sole proprietors should skip to Section 6. 
If more space is needed, please attach a separate sheet with the required information. 
• If the applicant is a corporation. the following information must be completed for each stockholder who owns 1.0% or more of

the stock in the corporation, and for each president, vice-president, secretary, and managing officer.
• If the applicant is a limited liability organization. the following information must be completed for each member with an

ownership interest of 1.0% or more, and for each manager.
• If the applicant is a partnership. including a Dmited partnership, the following information must be completed for each partner

with an interest of 1.°" or more, and for each general partner.

Entity Official: 

Title(s): 

Address: 

City: 

[Form AB-01} (rev 10/10/2016) 

MAY 2 4: 20\9 

"OWned: 

ZIP: JJ./7'-f 

...J,/\CC 

APR 4 ,�. 

Page3of7 



Entity Official: 

Alcohol and Marijuana (untrol Oi-fice 
550 W 7'h Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

�Ti _tl _e( _s)_: ____ 4-'._L!�u......:u.;......:..1...�_!_---'----L-C�U�•�-��...p:c�2t:...-%_Ow_n_e
d_:...J..!J:7\�J

Address: '.}· 

City: FL ZIP: 

�-------�------------------------------�., 

Entity Official: 

Title(s): 

Address: 

City: 

Entity Official: 

Title(s): I Phone: I I %Owned: I

Address: 

City: I State: I T ZIP: T. '

This subsection must be completed by any applicant that Is a corporation or UC. Corporations and LLCs are required to be in good 

standing with the Alaska Division of Corporations (DOC) and have a registered agent who is an individual resident of the state of 

Alaska. 

DOC Entity #: 

Registered Agent: 

Agent's MailingAddress: 

City: 

Residency of Agent: , 

Is your corporation or LLC's registered agent an individual resident of the state of Alaska? 

[FormAB-01) (rev 10/10/2016) AMCO 

MAY 2 4 2019

Yes No 

[lJ □ 

Page4of7 

,-�



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Alcohol and Marijuana-Control Office 
550 W ih Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

Section 6 - Other Licenses 

Ownership and financial interest in other alcoholic beverage businesses: 

Does any representative or owner named as a transferee in this application have any direct or indirect 

financial interest in any other alcoholic beverage business that does business in or is licensed in Alaska? 

Yes No 

□ I]

If ''Yes", disclose which individual(s) has the financial interest, what the type of business is, and if licensed in Alaska, which 

license number(s) and license type(s): 

,. 

... ·-.:tt(· 

ll.· , J.'·. ',"' \ j "j ; 

.. . ... � , . .

,•,. 

Section 7 - Authorization 

Communication with AMCO staff: Yes No 

Does any person other than a licensee named in this application have authority to discuss this license with 

AMCOstaff? 
□�

If "Yes", disclose the name of the individual and the reason for this authorization: 

[Form AB-01) (rev 10/10/2016) 4MCC Page5of7 

APR t 4 2019



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
550 W ih Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

Section 8 - Transferor Certifications 

f 

Additional copies of this page may be attached, as needed, for the controlling interest of the current licensee to be represe nted. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the undersigned represents a controlling interest of the current licensee. I additionally certify 
that I, as the current licensee (either the sole proprietor or the controlling interest of the currently licensed entity) have examined this 
application, approve of the transfer of this license, and find the information on this application to be true, correct, and complete. 

,�J-7nt:= Sloftransferor 

Printed name of transferor 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _5__ day of_A_--'--'1--f-'(___,_/ .... \ ______ _,, 201.j_. 

e OMeiallNI 

STATE OF ALASKA 
�Pullie 

SandrlS.Alcom 
CommiNicwl Ellpnl:12/01/21121 

�le�� ( 1,q£ 
Signatur/ of t½rrsferor 

<:-· /7 -
'- __)-Ccvl-� ') � � 

Signature of Notary Public 

Notary Public in and for the State of -'N'---f_,_\c.-""---'s._
1_<::._s.,.a..... ____ _ 

My commission expires: t 2 -o/- '2.0"2..J
' 

Y\ \.A v,)C [\ 
Printed name of transferor C I 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this� day of -'-�-'--'-f-'f_,,_' .... \ ______ .....,, 201i_. 

STATE OF ALASKA 
NOlltyPut,ie 

t> OfficAIISNI 

Sandri s Alcorn 
� Elqlna·12/01/2021 

[Form AB-01) (rev 10/10/2016) 

�
7

::c�� 
Signature of Notary Public 

Notary Public in and for the State of ...,_f)_,.:....!..:k:::c.-s=.::/c:...s._,__ ____ _ 

My commission expires: I ) ,oj · ') o� / 

Page6of7 

.i,,M( < 

APH j4 2Ul� 



Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
550 W ih Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https:ljwww.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907 .269.0350 

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Form AB-01: Transfer License Application 

Section 9 - Transferee Certifications 

Read each line below, and then sign your initials in the box to the right of each statement: 

I certify that all proposed licensees (as defined in AS 04.11.260) and affiliates have been listed on this application. 

I certify that all proposed licensees have been listed with the Division of Corporations. 

I certify that I understand that providing a false statement on this form or any other form provided by AMCO is grounds 
for rejection or denial of this application or revocation of any license issued. 

I certify that all licensees, agents, and employees who sell or serve alcoholic beverages or check the identification of a 
patron will complete an approved alcohol server education course, if required by AS 04.21.025, and, while selling or 
serving alcoholic beverages, will carry or have available to show a current course card or a photocopy of the card 
certifying completion of approved alcohol server education course, if required by 3 AAC 304.465. 

I agree to provide all information required by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board in support of this application. 

Initials 

As an applicant for a liquor license, I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read and am familiar with AS 04 and 3 AAC 304, and 
that this application, including all accompanying schedules and statements, is true, correct, and complete. 

� 
,I 

'---- -A tYYYJ
SigmUreoransfe:J 

Printed name 
C 

,, .... .,,,, ,/,.m'�• "11�� SUSAN A RAY 
f .� • : . E Notary Public • State of Florida
\� .,...,j Commission# GG 031299

�..,� ':A� ... ,,,,,,oH�,u:,,,.,,, My Comm. Expires Sep 18, 2020''"' 

[Form AB--01) (rev 10/10/2016) 

Notary Public in and for the State of f/Ql!...J Q /J:

My ,ommission e,pices3,pl Jfa'Z2D 

AMCO Page 7 of 7 



THE STATE 

ofALASI 
IIIHHIIHHII 
* 2 0 1 9 2 1 O 5 2 z 6 1 *

Department of Comm�.--, -- · · · ·  

Division o f  Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 

Corporations Section 
State Office Building, 333 Willoughby Avenue, 9tl• Floor 
PO Box 110806, Juneau, AK 99811-0806 
Phone: (907) 465-2550 • Fax: (907) 465-2974 
Email: corporations@alaska.gov 
Website: Corporations.Alaska.Gov 

cc 

COR 

RECEIVED 
Anchorage 

MAY 2 4 2019 

CBPL 

Statement of Change 

Domestic Business Corporation (AS 10.06) 

• This Statement of Change form for Registered Agents or Registered Agent Address Changes is only for
Domestic Business Corporations.

• The Statement of Change will not be filed if the official signing this form does not match an official on
record for this entity and/or if your entity's biennial report is not current. To verify your entity information on
record, go online to Corporations.Alaska.Gov, Search Corporations Database

• Standard processing time for complete and correct filings submitted to this office is approximately 10-15
business days. All filings are reviewed in the date order they are received.

• The information you submit is a public record and will be posted on the State's website.

1. Important: AS 10.06.150-.175 
1----------------------·-·----.. ·--------·------····---·-

Per AS 10.06.150, each Domestic Business Corporation shall (must) continuously (without interruption) 
maintain in this state (Alaska) a registered agent AND a registered office (with an Alaskan physical location
and an Alaskan mailing address) for the purpose of a registered agent's statutory requirements to receive 
service of processes, notices, or demands required or permitted by law to be served upon the corporation. 
Failure to meet registered agent requirements could result in involuntary dissolution of the entity's authority to 
transact business in the State of Alaska. -AS 10.06.633(a)(2),(3)

For more registered agent information go to Corporations.Alaska.Gov, Registered Agents FAQs.

2 Fee: . I '91, $25 Nonrefundable Filing Fee (CORF) 3 AAC 16.030(b) 

Mail this form and the non-refundable $25 filing fee in U.S. dollars to the letterhead address. Make the check 
or money order payable to the State of Alaska, or use the attached credit card payment form. 

3. Entity Information on Record with the State:
-----------·--·-·----------·----· ---

AS 10.06.165(a)(1) 

Entity Name: -------
U lr0e.�,\.re.1Y(,l.�---C..Ll---r �C.... ·---· ·--- ---· ----·- ·•··-·--·

Alaska Entity Number: ----------�-�-
�

--i1_�--------------------------------------------------------

08-409 Rev 7/1/16 D Bus Corp Statement of Change 1 of 2 
MAY 2 4 2019 



4. PREVIOUS Registered Agent Information on Record with the State: AS 10.06.165(a)(2), (4) 

PREVIOUS Registered Agent Name: .<:-. .T -- .. ◊--�!(rv.IQ. h. v.'\!\__ .. -�-?>k_Yl(\ ____ ,. ��� ���� 
PREVIOUS Registered Agent Addresses: MAY 2 4 201 

➔ -����l�AL Address: ___ °)_Q(..p Q ___ 0. \u. (},'( � ___ lliUL-\ __ S \-(:.___�o � --------· C BP L

City: 
� � \A £i State: AK (mandatory) ZIP Code: Cf 7:-2 G\ 

·------.. ----· - ---- .1.1. __ (.A__\,,J,__ ______ --•·••--··-· ·-· ·----------- ·-. ·---- .. -- ....... -- ----------- ------------·------·-

➔ __ MAILING Address: __ S �U .. D,. ________ (? \_o.. U '(_ 'Y ____ \ \u L1 __ ,5 "\-c: ___ � --:1 _____ __
_ City: _____ u W V\...e..CJ .... Lb--: _______________ State: AK_ (mandatory) ______ ZIP Code: __ 'l l 8 ol__

5. NEW Registered Agent Information to be Updated with the State: AS 10.06.165(a)(3), (5) 

NEW Registered Agent Name: ________ --;:5-e. '(\ Y\fe_,, ___ We. '3.\ buff _____________________________ 
(Registered agent cannot be the entity listed in Item 3 on Page 1 and cannot be an LLC.) 

If the new Registered Agent is an entity, provide its entity number: 

NEW Registered Agent Addresses: 

➔ PHYSICAL Address: . ��- - ·-�----------------·--------------- --- - "'•-� '3 < - � 
- _,, I 

City: � /A \ \f'{\ (}'( State: AK (mandatory) ZIP Code: il le '-r\ � I
----------- --------�-'=--------------- -------·-- ----· - ---------··· ----·-- ---··---- --- --------------------------------- ---- ---· 

➔ _MAILING Address: ________ 3Co _55 ____ s_. _ O\c\._G\en y'\ __ ·��L\_fux_ ___d\3 

City: �CA\ vY\t1 State: AK (mandatory) ZIP Code: °tC\(./[ � 

6. Authorization per Alaska Statute: AS 10.06.165(a)(6) 
--------------------------------------------1 

The registered agent change was authorized by a resolution duly adopted by the board of directors of this 
corporation. Per AS 10.06.430, the domestic business corporation is to keep and make available the record of 
the resolution. 

7. Required Signature: AS 10.06.165(a) 
1---------------------------- ---------

The Statement of Change must be signed by the corporate president or vice president currently on record. 
Persons who sign documents filed with the commissioner that are known to the person to be false in material 
respects are guilty of a class misdemeanor. 

Signature: �--:7 , Date: .SJ ;)L/ ll 9 ----------- ---------------- -- - - -----------------------------f------1---------------------

Pr
i
nted Name

: _____ \tJ \_ \ ,_o.. '{\ _____ £ __ (\ \\ V)�,y-
5
________________ ··----·--·-··- ___ ·---·- ----·· _ -----·--------

Title of Authorized Signer: 
� 

President - or - 0 Vice-President

08-409 Rev 7/1/16 D Bus Corp Statement of Change 2 of 2 
AMCO 

MAY 2 4 2019 



THE STATE 

01ALASI<A 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 
Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 

Corporations Section 
State Office Building, 333 Willoughby Avenue, 9th Floor 
PO Box 110806, Juneau, AK 99811-0806 
Phone: (907) 465-2550 • Fax: (907) 465-2974 
Email: corporations@alaska.gov
Website: Corporations.Alaska. Gov

RECEl'JcD 
Ancllorage 

MAY 2 4 2019 

CBPL 

COR 

Contact Information 

• Return this form with your filing
• This information may be used by the Division to assist with processing your attached filings
• This form will not be filed for record, or appear online

Entity Information 

Entity Name: 

AK Entity#: 

Contact Person 

Enter your entity information as it appears on this filing. 

l 1 k A'Y\1) 3�6>-
-6 LP 46 L( D

_j,hc:_�-

Whom may we contact with any questions or problems with this filing? 

Company: 1-- t \ \ \' r1 Y"\
Contact: 

Y\,\. A \a.c{ (
\ I 

c /u u \ \Yl �'X \e v-o� Ce.,-� 

Mailing Address: 

Phone: 

---- - ----------- --------·-- - ----· -------

Address: _ _a�_ (\ _ __f\_� (A -�cl :# 6ol-_______
City: --L2 y (Y\c_fV\C \ State:-f1 , -- --------------------·· ZIP. 3d'\ 14--/ ·-·-

h 

r-- o-t,( D _CL�- s.=.J� s aLJ - ---·- ------·-

Email: \ \ \ li. ,\ V\ \ I kY )',{ (l � ( I YW' A ·\ \ , r ( .YV\ 
'-

Document Return Address Provide an address for the return of your filed documents. 

� Return my filings to the address provided ABOVE

0 Return my filings to this address provided BELOW

Company: 
--- ---- ---- ----------- . -- ----------- --·--------- -------

Contact: 
--·-· ·- ----- ·-----------

Address. 
-------------· -----··· ·--··--· ·-·-

Mailing Address: --·----·- ---- -·· - ·-. ---··--·· ---·-··--- ·---· ------ - ·--· ·-----·-··-- - - ------

City: 

08-561 Rev 7/14/16 

State: 

Contact Information 

ZIP:

AMC<

MAY 2 4 2019

C.



1 
 

City of Palmer ● Liquor License Review Form   
 

BUSINESS NAME: Klondike Mike’s Saloon OWNER: Uline Beverage Co., Inc. 
 

LICENSE TYPE: Restaurant  
 

LOCATION: 820 S. Colony Way 
 

 
Route to:  Department of Finance 
 

Department of Finance 
Sales Tax Current:  √  Yes √ No 
 

If no, explain: April Sales tax has not been received. Spoke with vendor. Scanning return and 
 Check to be emailed. Putting check in the mail 6/14/19 
 

Utilities Current:  √ √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Special Assessments Current:  √ √ Yes  No     
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 
 

June 13, 2019 
Finance Director  Date 

 
Route to: Department of Community Development 
 

Department of Community Development 
Code Compliant:  √ √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Fire Compliant (Plans Review):√ √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
  June 13, 2019 
Community Development Director  Date 

 
 



2 
 

Route to: Police Department 
 

Police Department 
Code Compliant:  √ √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 

6-13-19 
Chief of Police  Date 

 
Route to: City Manager’s Office 
 

City Manager’s Office 
Citizen Comments:    Yes  No 
 

If yes, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
   
City Manager  Date 

                                                
Route to:  City Clerk’s Office 
 

City Clerk ’s Office 
Citizen Comments:    Yes √ No 
 

If yes, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
  June 14, 2019 
City Clerk  Date 

 
FORWARD TO COUNCIL FOR AGENDA OF:  June 25, 2019 
 





____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-054 Page 1 of 3 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-054 

 
Subject:  Accepting Council Member Pete LaFrance’s Resignation, Declaring the Seat Vacant Effective 
June 26, and Directing the City Clerk to Begin the Appointment Process to Fill the Vacancy Until a 
Successor is Seated After the October 1, 2019, Regular Election 
 
Agenda of: June 25, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Clerk Norma I. Alley 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 250.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 250.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6022 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-054 Page 2 of 3 

Attachment(s):  
 Potential Supplemental Questions 
 Potential Interview Questions 
 Advertisement 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Council Member Pete LaFrance was elected to the Palmer City Council in October, 2015. Council Member 
LaFrance submitted his resignation effective June 25, 2019. This resignation creates a vacancy on the City 
Council for a seat expiring October, 2021. 
 
Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.065 states once the position is declared vacant, upon acceptance of the 
resignation, the City Clerk is to publish public notice of the vacancy, accept applications for 14 days after 
the first publication, and then the Council is to fill the vacancy by appointment. 
 
The first publication will be on June 28 with the deadline to submit applications on Friday, July 12, at 4:30 
p.m. The City Clerk’s Office will vet the applications ensuring they are qualified to serve on the Council.  
The applications will be furnished to the City Council for review at the July 23 City Council Meeting. The 
applicant appointed will serve from time of receiving Oath of Office until the candidate elected at the 
October 1, 2019, Regular Election assumes office to serve the remainder of the term. 
 
The appointment process outlined below is consistent with the Palmer Municipal Code and best practices: 
 
Advertisement and Application Period: 

• The City Clerk will begin advertisement with the first publication on June 28 in The Frontiersman. 
• Applications will be accepted at time of declaration of vacancy to 4:30 p.m. on Friday, July 12. All 

applications must be received by the City Clerk’s Office no later than the deadline.  If mailed, the 
postmark on the envelope will not be considered as a valid date for meeting the deadline. 

• Interested persons shall file a completed application. If it is the wish of the Council, the applicant 
may also be required to submit a letter of intent (did this with 2003 appointment) and/or 
supplemental questions (did this with 2018 appointment). 

 
Interview Questions:  

• The Council will need to finalize interview questions. Attached are the questions asked in the 2018 
interviews. 

• Who will ask the questions?  
 
Interviews: 

• The Council can determine if interviews will be conducted on July 23 or calling a Special Meeting.  
 
Selection/Oath of Office: 

• Once interviews have concluded, the Council will deliberate and determine the best qualified 
candidate.  Past practice has been for deliberation to be conducted in open meeting. 

• Once deliberation has concluded, the Council has two options for proceeding with appointment: 
o A motion may be made, the night of the interviews, to appoint an applicant to fill the vacant 

seat with a term ending October 7, 2019, or until the candidate elected at the October 1, 
2019, Regular Election assumes office to serve the remainder of the term. 

o A motion may also be made, the night of the interviews, directing the City Clerk to prepare 
legislation to appointment an applicant at the August 13 Council Meeting. All necessary 
paperwork will be finalized and the Oath of Office will be performed at the August 13 
meeting. 

  



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-054 Page 3 of 3 

 
Matters for Discussion and Direction:  
 

1. Requirement for applicants to submit a letter of intent, one-page Resume, and/or supplemental 
questions with the application.  Attached are example questions. 

2. Selection of interview questions.  
3. Date of conducting interviews and process. 

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-054 



All the below supplemental questions must be answered 

 
1. What is your understanding of the role of a City Council Member? 

 

2. Tell us what has prepared you to be a Council Member. 

 

3. Why are you interested in serving as a Council Member?  

 

4. Describe your understanding of the time commitment associated with serving on the City Council and 

are you prepared to meet it?  

 

5. Are you prepared to meet the time commitment of being a Council Member? 

• Regular meetings scheduled the second and fourth Tuesday of each month; 

• Budget meetings are every Tuesday of the month commencing on the second Tuesday in October 

through the second Tuesday in December; and 

• Occasional special meetings called from time to time.  Special meetings in the past have been held 

for the purpose of joint meetings with City boards or commissions. 

 

6. Do you have any scheduled vacations or commitments that would keep you from attending Council 

Meetings? 



COUNCIL MEMBER VACANCY  
INTERVIEW QUESTIONS & NOTES FORM FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS 

JULY, 2019 

 
Council Member Vacancy Candidate Questions and Notes Form Page 1 
S:\CityClerk\Council\Council Packets\Working Folder\2019-0625\20.2 Council Interview Questions 2019-07.docx 

 
CANDIDATE: ________________________________ 
 
Interview Questions: Notes on Candidate’s Response: 

1.  Tell us about yourself. 
 
 

 

2.  What do you feel is the most critical 
issue facing the City of Palmer today? 
 
 

 

3.  What do you think is the most 
positive attribute of the City? 
 
 

 

4.  Share your assessment of any recent 
decision of the City Council. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Council Member’s Signature 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Council Member’s Printed Name 
 



Public Notice 
CITY COUNCIL VACANCY 

 
 
City Council has a vacant seat and will be appointing a qualified person to fill the position until a candidate is 
elected on the October 1, 2019, Regular Election. City Council is seeking applications from engaged citizens to 
serve on a dynamic decision-making team governing your community. Applications may be obtained from the city’s 
website at www.palmerak.org or picking up a hard copy at Palmer City Hall from the City Clerk’s Office. Please 
direct inquiries to the City Clerk’s Office at (907) 761-1301. 
 
 Position:  City Council Member 
 Term:   From time of appointment through October 7, 2019. 
 Qualifications: 

• Must be a registered voter in the state of Alaska. 
• Must have resided within the city of Palmer city limits for at least one year at time of appointment. 

 
 Areas of Council Involvement: 

• Various committees and public meetings. 
• Government finance. 
• Basic parliamentary procedure. 
• Land use planning. 
• Conflict of interest regulations. 
• Due process procedures. 
• Public contracting laws. 

 
 Duties: 

• Attend two Council meetings per month and periodically other special meetings as scheduled.  
• Participate in intergovernmental relations. 
• Set city policy. 
• Approve the city budget. 
• Various other responsibilities of running a municipal corporation. 

 
 City of Palmer General Boundaries:  City limits are generally located as Cedar Hills Subdivision for 

northern boundary; the river for eastern boundary; Hemmer Road for western boundary; Helen Drive for 
southwest boundary; and Springer Loop as southern boundary. Precise boundaries will need to be checked 
with the City Clerk’s Office.  

 
 Deadline:  A completed application, accompanied by supplemental questions, must be received in a 

sealed envelope by the City Clerk’s Office no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, July 12, 2019. 
Applications may be obtained from the city’s website at www.palmerak.org or picking up a hard copy at 
Palmer City Hall from the City Clerk’s Office. The City Council reserves the right to extend the deadline 
if the Council feels it is advisable or would be in the best interest of the city. 

 
 Appointment Date:  The Council may interview and make the appointment at the regular meeting of 

Tuesday, July 23, 2019, beginning at 7:00 p.m. or at a special meeting the preceding week. Applicants are 
required to attend in order to be considered for the position. If someone is appointed, the applicant may take 
office on August 13, 2019. The Council may delay appointment at their discretion. 

 
Publish: June 28, July 3 and July 7 

http://www.palmerak.org/
http://www.palmerak.org/


Palmer Municipal Code 2.05.060 
Alternate Deputy Mayor (Selection Process) 

 
 
 
2.05.060 Deputy mayor. 
A.  At the first meeting following the regular city election, council shall elect from its 

membership a deputy mayor and an alternate deputy mayor to serve in the absence of 
the mayor. 

B.  Deputy Mayor Election Process. The deputy mayor election process shall be as follows: 
1.  Nominations. The mayor shall open nominations for deputy mayor and shall continue 

taking nominations until all nominations have been made. 
2.  Voting Process. 

a.  After the nominations have closed, the mayor will, in alphabetical order by last 
name, bring each individual nominee’s name to the floor for a vote; 

b.  The nominee obtaining four votes of the council shall be declared the winner of 
the election. 

C.  Alternate Deputy Mayor Election Process. Following election of the deputy mayor, the 
council shall elect, using the same process as used for the deputy mayor election, the 
alternate deputy mayor. 

D.  The deputy mayor shall succeed to the office of mayor when a vacancy occurs in that 
office and shall have and exercise the powers and duties of the mayor when the mayor 
is absent or unable to perform the duties of office. 
1.  When a doubt exists concerning the ability of the mayor to perform the duties of 

office, the council shall, by resolution, determine whether the deputy mayor shall act 
in the place of the mayor. 

2.  The determination shall stand until the council determines that the disability or 
inability ceases. 

E.  The alternate deputy mayor shall succeed to deputy mayor when the deputy mayor is 
unavailable or there is a deputy mayor vacancy. (Ord. 14-003 § 3, 2014; Ord. 10-020 § 
3, 2010; Ord. 10-006 § 3, 2010; Ord. 648 § 4, 2005) 

 


	Agenda
	AM 19-051 Insurance Contract Renewal
	AM 19-052 Airport Lease Assign CIG to PAAQ
	2019-0528 Council Minutes Special
	2019-0528 Council Minutes
	Mayors Memo
	Ord. 19-011 Term Limits
	Ord. 19-012 Title 1 Surcharge
	AM 19-053 Liquor License Ownership Transfer - Klondike Mike
	AM 19-054 Accept LaFrance Resignation
	Election of Alternate Deputy Mayor



